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 1                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Good


 2     evening.  This is a public information session,


 3     Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company private


 4     passenger automobile rate filing.  It is Tuesday,


 5     March 20th, and we are going to start the public


 6     session, which will be from 6 to 8 p.m.


 7                  We will let the record reflect that


 8     at the present time, we have members from


 9     Allstate that are here, members from INS, members


10     from the DOI, but we currently do not have any


11     members from the public present at this meeting.


12                  We will go through this


13     presentation.  I will then leave the record open


14     after the parties are finished for another 15


15     minutes, so if someone from the public comes back


16     in, we will ask the parties to briefly go through


17     and summarize this again.  And we will close it


18     out at 6:30, if no one from the public attends.


19                  So, we're going to get started.


20     Welcome to the Delaware Insurance Department's


21     public information session regarding the Allstate


22     Indemnity Insurance Company private passenger


23     automobile rate filing.  My name is Gene Reed.


24     I'm the Deputy Insurance Commissioner for the
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 1     Delaware Insurance Commissioner, Karen Weldin


 2     Stewart.  I will facilitate tonight's public


 3     information session.  Commissioner Stewart will


 4     make the ultimate decision to approve or


 5     disapprove this proposed rate filing.


 6                  Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company


 7     has filed a private passenger automobile rate


 8     filing pursuant to Delaware Code Title 18,


 9     Chapter 25, rates and rating organizations.


10     Allstate indemnity requested an overall rate


11     level change of 15 percent, with an indicated


12     rate level change of plus 27 percent.


13                  Allstate indemnity then submitted a


14     revised indicated rate level change of plus 26.4


15     percent.  After questions were asked and


16     responded to by the Department and Allstate


17     indemnity actuaries, Allstate intends to submit a


18     filing amendment with revised detailed rate


19     schedules for an proposed rate level change of


20     plus 8.5 percent.


21                  The purpose of this session is for


22     the Department of Insurance to receive comments


23     from the public to aid in reaching a decision on


24     the proposed private passenger automobile rate
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 1     filing.


 2                  In reaching its decision, the


 3     Department will consider any comments presented


 4     here today, along with any comment submitted in


 5     writing.  The entire record concerning the


 6     proposed private passenger automobile rate


 7     filing, including the transcript of today's


 8     session, will be reviewed before any final


 9     conclusions are reached.


10                  Today's session, as you can see, is


11     being transcribed by a court reporter.  After the


12     Department receives the typed transcript, the


13     Department will make it available on its internet


14     website at www.delawareinsurance.gov.  You may


15     download a copy of the transcript from the


16     Department's website at that time.


17                  If you do not have internet access,


18     you may view the transcript at the Department's


19     offices in Dover and Wilmington, but please call


20     to schedule an appointment before visiting the


21     Department's offices.  You may also submit a


22     request for copies of a particular document by


23     fax or e-mail.


24                  As explained earlier, the purpose of
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 1     today's session is to provide a public forum for


 2     anyone to give information or comments concerning


 3     the proposed Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company


 4     private passenger automobile rate filing.  Please


 5     address your comments to this topic only.  We ask


 6     that you please be as concise as possible, and


 7     limit your remarks to around 8 minutes.


 8                  If you are speaking, we ask that you


 9     include your name on a list of speakers that is


10     available at the sign-in table.  I hope you have


11     all signed up and have already indicated that you


12     wish to speak.  If you have not done so, please


13     do so now.


14                  We also ask that you indicate if you


15     are speaking on your own behalf or if you are


16     speaking in any type of representative capacity.


17     For example, if you are a policyholder of


18     Allstate Indemnity.


19                  Because of the informal nature of


20     today's session, there will not be any sworn


21     testimony.  Cross-examination and similar


22     questioning of speakers or other representatives


23     of the parties likewise will not be permitted.


24                  However, you may pose factual
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 1     questions to the applicants during your oral


 2     comments.  Following today's session, the


 3     Department will require Allstate Indemnity


 4     Insurance Company to respond in writing to all


 5     questions raised by the Department and public


 6     during this session, and will make the responses


 7     available on our website.


 8                  Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company


 9     and the Insurance Department's actuary firm, INS


10     Consultants, which reviewed the private passenger


11     automobile rate filing, have each sent


12     representatives to contribute to this public


13     information session.


14                  Ed Clark, Capital Region state


15     manager, and Wasim Chowdhury, assistant actuary,


16     are here on behalf of Allstate Indemnity, and


17     Dave Macesic of INS Consultants, the Department's


18     actuary for this matter, will be making


19     introductory statements.


20                  Their statements are intended to


21     give an overview of the private passenger


22     automobile rate filing as a preface to the public


23     comments session.  Their statements will be


24     recorded by the court reporter, and will be
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 1     posted on the Department's website.  The


 2     representatives from Allstate Indemnity will be


 3     speaking first.


 4                  MR. CLARK:  Good evening, ladies and


 5     gentlemen.  Thank you for joining us for the


 6     discussion of our current premium change request


 7     we have pending with the Delaware Department of


 8     Insurance.  My name is Ed Clark.  I'm the state


 9     manager for Allstate's Capital Region, which


10     oversees our business operation for five states,


11     including here in Delaware.


12                  In my role as state manager, I am


13     responsible for the product and pricing decisions


14     that we have for the five-state region, as well


15     as work with representatives across all of our


16     regions, or across all of the states that we


17     manage, to balance the cost of insurance while


18     maintaining and making sure we have strong cash


19     reserves, manage our expenses, as well as fulfill


20     our claims paying responsibilities.


21                  Our insurance, in our view, provides


22     customers peace of mind.  It restores their lives


23     in the event of an unfortunate event, and as well


24     as replaces their assets, their loss due to a
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 1     claim that we cover.  This is a promise that we


 2     live and breathe every day as a company, as


 3     individuals that represent Allstate.  It's a


 4     promise that we intend to keep every day with our


 5     customers.


 6                  We understand, in today's economy,


 7     paying more for your insurance is not easy for


 8     anyone.  We also recognize we have a


 9     responsibility to our customers, our agents, our


10     employees, as well as the shareholders of the


11     Allstate Insurance Company, that we remain a


12     safe, strong, and secure company.


13                  We'd like to give you a little


14     background on the recent premium change request


15     that we have pending in regards to our Allstate


16     Indemnity Company.  First slide.


17                  Just to make sure customers


18     understand, we have multiple auto companies here


19     in Delaware.  There's various reasons why


20     customers would be placed in one company versus


21     another.  It may be when you came to Allstate.


22     We've opened companies more recently, in the past


23     10 to 12 years.


24                  We have certain companies that only
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 1     have specific products available to customers.


 2     And as well as in this circumstance, higher risk


 3     drivers are placed in our Allstate Indemnity


 4     Company, as opposed to the Allstate Insurance


 5     Company or Allstate Property and Casualty


 6     Insurance Company.


 7                  Currently, the Allstate Indemnity


 8     Company insures 1238 policyholders.  That


 9     represents 3.4 percent of our overall policies in


10     Delaware, and 4.8 percent of the overall


11     households that we ensure.


12                  Higher risk drivers, being defined


13     as those drivers that either have multiple


14     tickets and/or accidents, may have a major


15     violation of some kind, either a driving under


16     the influence, driving while impaired, reckless


17     driving, et cetera, where they would not be


18     eligible for our preferred or standard auto


19     insurance company.  As well as those customers


20     who came to Allstate without having prior


21     insurance, making them ineligible for that


22     standard insurance company, as well.


23                  What we'd like to do is give you


24     some information, as far as what has happened
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 1     with the cost of insurance, and that our premiums


 2     have not been able to keep up with that over


 3     recent years.  Wasim Chowdhury, who manages our


 4     actuarial staff, will provide additional


 5     information as to why that is, and where some of


 6     the additional costs are, as they've surfaced in


 7     recent years; what's causing that need for


 8     additional premium to keep up with the changing


 9     costs.


10                  You can also see here, we did, as


11     Mr. Reed acknowledged, had an original rate


12     filing of a 15 percent average premium increase.


13     We have worked with representatives from INS


14     Consultants to arrive at a lower overall rate


15     level, at 8 and a half percent.


16                  To help customers understand where


17     that is, from an average premium standpoint, our


18     current average six-month premium for an auto


19     policy in the Allstate Indemnity Company is $830.


20     The average proposed increase at 8 and a half


21     percent is $70.


22                  A little bit of history on rate


23     changes within this company.  The last time we


24     adjusted rates on an overall level for the
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 1     company was in July of 2008, which was an overall


 2     decrease of 13.1 percent.  The last time we had


 3     any type of increase in overall premium within


 4     this company goes as far back as December of


 5     2002.


 6                  A couple of additional information


 7     in regards to that history.  In July of 2008, we


 8     introduced a new overall pricing plan for the


 9     Allstate Indemnity Company.  Although we had not


10     raised premiums for several years, we had seen


11     our business reduce or lose customers over time.


12     We had not taken any substantial action in the


13     market, but certainly, what we recognize is our


14     competition was overall more attractive than


15     Allstate was during the few years leading up to


16     2008.


17                  The overall pricing plan that we put


18     in did exactly what we had hoped it to do.  We


19     have been able to grow in the higher risk or


20     non-standard auto business at a pretty


21     substantial rate since this rate plan went in.


22                  From 2008 through 2011, our overall


23     customer base within this company has tripled.


24     So the 1238 policyholders at a current count
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 1     represents three times the level of customers


 2     prior to this rating plan being introduced.


 3                  That rate of growth in our industry,


 4     and certainly for our company, can come with some


 5     risk.  It appears, at least to us, the rate of


 6     growth put additional profitability pressures on


 7     us.  Wasim is going to share some of the


 8     information as to where that additional rate


 9     pressure is coming from.  We believe this


10     compromised rate agreement at 8 and a half


11     percent puts us in a position to be much more in


12     line with what the competition offers for an


13     overall rate within the higher risk driver


14     market.


15                  We want to assure all of our


16     customers, they will not go through this rate


17     change alone.  Our local Delaware Allstate


18     agencies will be fully prepared as to how much a


19     customer's premium is going up, the reasons


20     behind the rate change, as well as the tools and


21     resources they need to help customers to make


22     their insurance more affordable.


23                  There are a number of different


24     product features, discounts that are available.
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 1     Wasim is going to take you through, the group


 2     through some of the discounts that are available,


 3     and discount opportunities that would enable


 4     customers to save money, if affordability became


 5     an issue with this recent rate increase, or our


 6     upcoming rate increase.


 7                  Our agencies are encouraged, and we


 8     certainly, you know, educate and help them


 9     understand the benefit of a customer renewal


10     assessment, or a personal policy protection


11     review, helping customers with both making sure


12     the policy meets their coverage needs, as well as


13     affordability, in the event that the premium is


14     beyond, you know, their ability, or compromises


15     their ability to pay for their insurance.


16                  Allstate has multiple distribution


17     support beyond just the local agency.  We're


18     available 24/7 through 1-800-Allstate, as well as


19     through the web, through Allstate.com.  So


20     customers can get service for their policy


21     through multiple means, any time of the day they


22     wish to.


23                  Our renewal notice goes out 40 days


24     in advance or their renewal, providing customers
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 1     the opportunity to review their policy, make any


 2     necessary changes, again, around the


 3     affordability.  As well as if some customers, you


 4     know, want to review whether the competition or


 5     other companies may have an opportunity to help


 6     them save money or have a policy that better


 7     suits their needs.


 8                  We have worked very closely with the


 9     Commissioner, her staff, as well as INS


10     Consultants, in regards to this compromise change


11     of 8 and a half percent.  We're comfortable it


12     helps us get our overall premium level more


13     adequate, while also recognizing that it helps


14     our customers from an affordability standpoint to


15     remain within the Allstate Indemnity Company.


16                  Allstate has a long and proud


17     tradition of serving customers and businesses in


18     the state of Delaware.  We insure over 27,600


19     autos, 19,200 homes in the state.  In 2010, the


20     most recent year that our claims data has been


21     available to us, we paid over $22.8 million in


22     claims.  We've invested over 10.8 million in


23     business-to-business spending, and invested


24     nearly $460 million in municipal bonds.
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 1                  We've paid $1.4 million in State


 2     taxes, and in Delaware, the Allstate Foundation


 3     has provided 26,000 in support of nonprofits to


 4     service the state.


 5                  So, in closing, we are absolutely


 6     committed to our customers and small business


 7     owners, the local Allstate agency.  On behalf of


 8     the corporation, we want to thank all of our


 9     customers for the opportunity to service their


10     business needs, and anyone who had the


11     opportunity to come this evening, to hear more


12     information about the rate change that we have


13     currently pending with the state.


14                  And now at this time, I'd like to


15     turn the information over to Wasim Chowdhury, who


16     is going to take you more in depth regarding the


17     specific change that we have with the state.


18                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.  Thanks for


19     the overview, Ed.  As Ed mentioned, my name is


20     Wasim Chowdhury, and my team manages the rates


21     for Allstate Indemnity in the state of Delaware.


22                  I'd like to begin by providing a


23     brief overview about the process we followed to


24     understand if we need to adjustment premiums.
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 1                  So in general, our goal is to ensure


 2     that the premium we charge in Allstate's


 3     Indemnity Company across Delaware is sufficient


 4     to cover all of our losses and expenses,


 5     including the claim payouts to our customers.  We


 6     carefully examine historical information to


 7     predict our future inflows, which you can


 8     consider premium, and future outflows, which you


 9     can consider our claims and expenses.


10                  In the state of Delaware's indemnity


11     book of business, data shows that our future


12     outflow are expected to be greater than the


13     premium we expect to collect, which is why we


14     have proposed a rate change.


15                  As Ed also noted, our losses have


16     considerably increased over the past few years as


17     our business has increased.  I'd like to direct


18     your attention to slide 3, which clearly


19     demonstrates that as our business has increased,


20     so have our losses and expenses relative to


21     premium.  Compared to 2008, our losses and


22     expenses have increased approximately 25 to 30


23     percent in comparison to the premium we're


24     receiving.  This analysis indicated we needed to
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 1     adjust rates to keep up with our expenses and


 2     claims.


 3                  The next question we needed to


 4     answer was how do we adjust individual rates to


 5     arrive at the proper average premium that


 6     balances our inflows and our outflows.


 7                  As you know, different customers


 8     have different expected losses.  For example, an


 9     inexperienced 16-year-old driver is expected to


10     have higher losses than a 35-year-old driver with


11     many years of driving experience.


12                  My team did additional analysis to


13     determine which groups of drivers needed to be


14     adjusted to better reflect their expected loss.


15     Based on our analysis, we found that the single


16     vehicle, non-homeowner, liability-coverage-only


17     customers necessitated an increase higher than


18     average, to match their higher expected loss.


19                  On the other hand, the multi-car


20     homeowners with full coverage will see a lower


21     than average increase with this change, because


22     of their lower expected costs.


23                  About 20 percent of our business


24     will actually see a decrease with the premium
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 1     change, while about 27 percent will see an


 2     increase greater than 20 percent due to the


 3     higher expected losses.


 4                  We understand that increasing rates


 5     on customers can be challenging, but Allstate


 6     provides many Discount options to help customers


 7     lower their costs.


 8                  On slide 4, you can see all of the


 9     available discounts Allstate offers to its


10     customers.  On slide 5, I've highlighted a few of


11     them specifically that customers can consider as


12     options to lower their rates.


13                  The Allstate easy pay plan discount


14     applies when the policy is paid through the


15     Allstate easy pay plan, which means automatic


16     withdrawal from one's checking account.


17                  Next, the homeownership discount


18     applies when the named insured and/or spouse owns


19     a home, townhome, condominium, or mobile home.


20                  Next, the defensive driver discount


21     applies when an operator receives a certificate


22     certifying voluntary attendance and successful


23     completion of an accident prevention course or


24     motorcycle rider course approved by the Insurance
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 1     Commissioner.


 2                  I want to reiterate that the premium


 3     changes are taken very, very seriously by


 4     Allstate, and we fully understand the impact of


 5     these changes on our customers.  It's equally


 6     important to understand that we must carefully


 7     balance our premium inflows with our expected


 8     costs, to ensure that we make good on our promise


 9     to our customers.


10                  Thank you for your time this


11     evening, and I will hand the floor back to Ed.


12                  MR. CLARK:  Actually, that's our


13     closing for now.  Again, we appreciate


14     everyone's, you know, hearing the information in


15     regards to our situation with the current


16     company.  We appreciate the opportunity to share


17     our experience, and certainly value our


18     customers' continued support and appreciation of,


19     you know, doing business with Allstate.  Thank


20     you.


21                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Thank you


22     for your comments.  Before we go to INS, I do


23     have a couple of questions.  I'm not an actuary,


24     so can you -- you said -- and maybe I heard you
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 1     wrong.  You said premium enclosed premium


 2     outflow?


 3                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Premium inflows and


 4     outflows.


 5                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Oh,


 6     inflow.


 7                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Yes.  The premium


 8     collected is inflow to the company.


 9                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Got you.


10     Just wanted to make sure I understood you.  The


11     other question I have is the premium swing.  When


12     I looked at the graph that you had provided on


13     the file, you had -- you said roughly 20 percent


14     of the people will get 20 percent or more?


15                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  27 percent of the


16     customers will see an increase greater than 20


17     percent.


18                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Greater


19     than 20 percent.  Overall, when I looked at that,


20     it appeared that 39 percent of the policyholder


21     base would see at least 10 percent, or a double


22     digit increase or greater.


23                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.


24                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  You also
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 1     have that on the other side of the pendulum, the


 2     swing of the decreases, as well.  When I looked


 3     at the 10 percent, let's say the 10 percent to 20


 4     percent.  Those that are getting 20 percent or


 5     more are considered very high risk?  They're the


 6     ones getting that increase?  Or is it coming in


 7     those zip codes, or in those areas?


 8                  I'm trying to establish like the --


 9     to me, when I looked at that, it appeared that


10     I'm getting a 10 percent increase even if I'm one


11     of your good substandard drivers -- if there's


12     such a thing as a good substandard driver -- but


13     I'm getting a 10 percent increase because I'm in


14     this zip code.


15                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.


16                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Or I'm in


17     this area, maybe where you have more higher


18     claims or something.  Can you explain that?


19                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Sure.  So we are


20     touching and updating the rates for multiple


21     rating plans.  And a rating plan is essentially


22     one piece that goes into determining your final


23     rate.  So different factors that go into


24     determining your rate are your age, where you
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 1     live, your accident history, violation history.


 2     So there are multiple factors that ultimately


 3     determine the final rate.


 4                  We are updating the rates for many


 5     of those rating plans.  Territory is actually one


 6     rating plan that we are not updating.  So all


 7     else equal, two customers in different


 8     territories should not see a different rate


 9     change.  Assuming all else equal.  Same exact


10     risk profile, one maybe in Wilmington, one maybe


11     in Dover.  But as long as they are the same exact


12     risk otherwise, there should not be a difference


13     in rate.


14                  However, I did mention that we are


15     updating the factors for other characteristics.


16     And so, you do have that swing, since there are


17     many factors that are being updated, to the


18     extent that you're a customer that is getting the


19     increase due to multiple factors, you're going to


20     be on the higher end of the histogram on the rate


21     change distribution.


22                  So on average, it seems that the


23     single vehicle, the ones who do not own a home,


24     and only have liability coverage, so your bodily
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 1     injury, property damage, personal injury


 2     protection, and uninsured motorist coverage,


 3     they're the ones who are on the higher end of


 4     that distribution.


 5                  And then on the flip side, the rates


 6     compared to average have gone down for the


 7     customers who have multiple cars, who own a home,


 8     and have more than just the liability coverage,


 9     which includes collision coverage and


10     comprehensive coverage.


11                  So, multiple factors ultimately


12     result in the final rate.  We are touching


13     multiple factors.  And it just depends on your


14     characteristics, and if you happen to, for each


15     characteristic, be on the end where the rates are


16     increasing, when you put that all together,


17     you're going to see the larger than average


18     increase.


19                  But again, on the flip side, if


20     you're a customer that is on the better side of


21     each characteristic that we're updating, then


22     you'll see --


23                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  A


24     decrease?
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 1                  MR. CLARK:  And the way we view


 2     that, Gene, from a business perspective, is by


 3     getting to the most accurate rate even at an


 4     individual customer group around the


 5     characteristics that Wasim described.  That way,


 6     the customers whose performance is better than


 7     their current rate, that they have an opportunity


 8     to save money, or potentially pay less than the


 9     average rate that they have.


10                  If we -- if our pursuit is to try to


11     minimize the overall experience within the book,


12     we would try to center more of the, you know,


13     overall rate change around the -- you know, the


14     eight and a half percent within this change that


15     we're making here.


16                  We think that's, you know, not in


17     the best interests of a good percentage of our


18     overall customer group.  And that would be a


19     group that we would hope to have the opportunity


20     to retain, as well as, you know, grow within this


21     book of business.  We certainly want to grow in


22     the other segments, but not at the current rate


23     level that we charge.  We need a more adequate


24     premium to be able to do it.  And that's what
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 1     creates what we refer to as spread within the


 2     overall rate level.


 3                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.


 4     Thank you.  One last question.  Credit score, as


 5     you know, is used for new policyholders, not


 6     existing policyholders, under Delaware law.  If


 7     someone were to come to Allstate and had a very


 8     clean record, but had a very poor credit score


 9     rating, would they go to the substandard company,


10     or could they also be written in the -- the


11     better, or however --


12                  MR. CLARK:  Yeah.  We do not have


13     any underwriting guideline in regards to your


14     credit score here in Delaware.  So a customer for


15     all other perspective qualifies for the


16     Allstate -- today it's the Allstate Property and


17     Casualty Company, which is our standard auto


18     company, they would not be in any way restricted


19     or required to pay more, or be placed in a higher


20     risk auto company.


21                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.


22                  MR. CLARK:  We don't have any


23     guidelines, and we believe that's in accordance


24     with what we'd be asked to do here in the state.
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 1                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Very


 2     good.  Thank you.  INS.


 3                  MR. MACESIC:  Okay.  INS


 4     Consultants, Inc., has been retained by the


 5     Delaware Department of Insurance to conduct an


 6     independent actuarial review of Allstate


 7     Indemnity Company's private passenger automobile


 8     rate filing that was submitted on November 14th,


 9     2011.


10                  The scope includes a review of the


11     filings submitted by Allstate Indemnity, an


12     evaluation of the key assumptions contained in


13     the company's rate level analysis, and the


14     independent development of an indicated rate


15     level change.


16                  The rate filing was submitted by


17     Rick Wisniewski, associate state filings director


18     of Allstate Indemnity.  This review was conducted


19     by David J. Macesic, ACAS, MAAA, and key elements


20     of this review were peer reviewed by Robert W.


21     Gardner, FCAS, MAAA.


22                  INS has reviewed this submission in


23     its entirety, along with other filing material


24     requested of and received from Allstate
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 1     Indemnity.  The rate filing requested an overall


 2     rate level change of plus 15.0 percent.


 3                  INS finds that the proposed rate


 4     level change of plus 15.0 percent is not


 5     substantiated by the materials received from the


 6     company.  INS finds that a proposed rate level


 7     change in an amount no larger than plus 8.8


 8     percent is substantiated by the filing material


 9     received.


10                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Is that


11     your report?


12                  MR. MACESIC:  That's it.


13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That was


14     pretty quick, Mr. Macesic.  Good report.  Are


15     there any questions from Allstate on that report?


16                  MR. CLARK:  No, sir.


17                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  There's


18     no one here from the public, so I will ask a few


19     questions.  Can you please tell me what an ACAS


20     and an MAAA and an FCAS are?


21                  MR. MACESIC:  Associate of the


22     Casualty Actuarial Society, versus a Fellow of


23     the Casualty Actuarial Society.  And MAAA is a


24     Member of the American Academy of Actuaries,
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 1     which means we are accredited actuaries.


 2                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.


 3     All right.  I don't have any questions on your


 4     report.  You did a great job working with our


 5     rate analyst and rate assistant director.  I


 6     appreciate you doing that, and working with the


 7     Commissioner on this file, and also working with


 8     the Allstate actuary so that we could come to a


 9     change in the overall indicated rate level amount


10     of, you said, 8.8 percent?


11                  MR. MACESIC:  No.  It's not larger


12     than plus 8.8 percent.


13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.


14     Not larger than 8.8 percent.  I appreciate your


15     working with the Department and our staff.


16                  MR. MACESIC:  Thank you.


17                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  I'm going


18     to leave the record open until -- since there's


19     nobody here since 6:00, I'm only going to leave


20     the record open for another ten minutes.  We'll


21     come back, take a ten minute recess, come back.


22     If there's no one from the public here, we will


23     go ahead and close out the hearing.  I appreciate


24     everyone here that was here in attendance.
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 1                  Let me just ask Rhonda a quick


 2     question.  As far as procedural, I know you have


 3     it in the notes, but if you could tell me, are we


 4     leaving this open until Friday, the record?


 5                  MS. WEST:  Yeah.  What we'll do,


 6     because in case there was something now, we'll


 7     leave it open until Friday the 23rd, and then we


 8     close it out officially at that point.


 9                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That's


10     Rhonda West, regulatory specialist for the


11     Department.  That's what we'll do.  Take a


12     ten-minute recess, and then we'll come back.  If


13     no one from the public is here at 20 of 7, we


14     will conclude the hearing tonight.


15                  (Briefly off the record)


16                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.


17     We're back on the record.  It is now 20 minutes


18     to 7.  There are no members from the public


19     present, and as our regulatory specialist Rhonda


20     West stated, we will keep it open for any written


21     comments until this Friday at 4:30 p.m.


22                  MS. WEST:  We've not received any


23     yet.


24                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Yeah.  I
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 1     think that's important for the record.  We


 2     haven't received any comments to date.  We


 3     appreciate the members of Allstate being here


 4     today, and we appreciate INS for giving their


 5     overview of the filing submission.


 6                  So, we will let the record reflect,


 7     again, no public attendance, and we are closing


 8     this public session as of now.  Thank you all for


 9     coming.


10                  (Hearing concluded at 6:40 p.m.)
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 2
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 1      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Good
 2  evening.  This is a public information session,
 3  Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company private
 4  passenger automobile rate filing.  It is Tuesday,
 5  March 20th, and we are going to start the public
 6  session, which will be from 6 to 8 p.m.
 7      We will let the record reflect that
 8  at the present time, we have members from
 9  Allstate that are here, members from INS, members
10  from the DOI, but we currently do not have any
11  members from the public present at this meeting.
12      We will go through this
13  presentation.  I will then leave the record open
14  after the parties are finished for another 15
15  minutes, so if someone from the public comes back
16  in, we will ask the parties to briefly go through
17  and summarize this again.  And we will close it
18  out at 6:30, if no one from the public attends.
19      So, we're going to get started.
20  Welcome to the Delaware Insurance Department's
21  public information session regarding the Allstate
22  Indemnity Insurance Company private passenger
23  automobile rate filing.  My name is Gene Reed.
24  I'm the Deputy Insurance Commissioner for the
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 1  Delaware Insurance Commissioner, Karen Weldin
 2  Stewart.  I will facilitate tonight's public
 3  information session.  Commissioner Stewart will
 4  make the ultimate decision to approve or
 5  disapprove this proposed rate filing.
 6      Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company
 7  has filed a private passenger automobile rate
 8  filing pursuant to Delaware Code Title 18,
 9  Chapter 25, rates and rating organizations.
10  Allstate indemnity requested an overall rate
11  level change of 15 percent, with an indicated
12  rate level change of plus 27 percent.
13      Allstate indemnity then submitted a
14  revised indicated rate level change of plus 26.4
15  percent.  After questions were asked and
16  responded to by the Department and Allstate
17  indemnity actuaries, Allstate intends to submit a
18  filing amendment with revised detailed rate
19  schedules for an proposed rate level change of
20  plus 8.5 percent.
21      The purpose of this session is for
22  the Department of Insurance to receive comments
23  from the public to aid in reaching a decision on
24  the proposed private passenger automobile rate
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 1  filing.
 2      In reaching its decision, the
 3  Department will consider any comments presented
 4  here today, along with any comment submitted in
 5  writing.  The entire record concerning the
 6  proposed private passenger automobile rate
 7  filing, including the transcript of today's
 8  session, will be reviewed before any final
 9  conclusions are reached.
10      Today's session, as you can see, is
11  being transcribed by a court reporter.  After the
12  Department receives the typed transcript, the
13  Department will make it available on its internet
14  website at www.delawareinsurance.gov.  You may
15  download a copy of the transcript from the
16  Department's website at that time.
17      If you do not have internet access,
18  you may view the transcript at the Department's
19  offices in Dover and Wilmington, but please call
20  to schedule an appointment before visiting the
21  Department's offices.  You may also submit a
22  request for copies of a particular document by
23  fax or e-mail.
24      As explained earlier, the purpose of
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 1  today's session is to provide a public forum for
 2  anyone to give information or comments concerning
 3  the proposed Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company
 4  private passenger automobile rate filing.  Please
 5  address your comments to this topic only.  We ask
 6  that you please be as concise as possible, and
 7  limit your remarks to around 8 minutes.
 8      If you are speaking, we ask that you
 9  include your name on a list of speakers that is
10  available at the sign-in table.  I hope you have
11  all signed up and have already indicated that you
12  wish to speak.  If you have not done so, please
13  do so now.
14      We also ask that you indicate if you
15  are speaking on your own behalf or if you are
16  speaking in any type of representative capacity.
17  For example, if you are a policyholder of
18  Allstate Indemnity.
19      Because of the informal nature of
20  today's session, there will not be any sworn
21  testimony.  Cross-examination and similar
22  questioning of speakers or other representatives
23  of the parties likewise will not be permitted.
24      However, you may pose factual
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 1  questions to the applicants during your oral
 2  comments.  Following today's session, the
 3  Department will require Allstate Indemnity
 4  Insurance Company to respond in writing to all
 5  questions raised by the Department and public
 6  during this session, and will make the responses
 7  available on our website.
 8      Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company
 9  and the Insurance Department's actuary firm, INS
10  Consultants, which reviewed the private passenger
11  automobile rate filing, have each sent
12  representatives to contribute to this public
13  information session.
14      Ed Clark, Capital Region state
15  manager, and Wasim Chowdhury, assistant actuary,
16  are here on behalf of Allstate Indemnity, and
17  Dave Macesic of INS Consultants, the Department's
18  actuary for this matter, will be making
19  introductory statements.
20      Their statements are intended to
21  give an overview of the private passenger
22  automobile rate filing as a preface to the public
23  comments session.  Their statements will be
24  recorded by the court reporter, and will be
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 1  posted on the Department's website.  The
 2  representatives from Allstate Indemnity will be
 3  speaking first.
 4      MR. CLARK: Good evening, ladies and
 5  gentlemen.  Thank you for joining us for the
 6  discussion of our current premium change request
 7  we have pending with the Delaware Department of
 8  Insurance.  My name is Ed Clark.  I'm the state
 9  manager for Allstate's Capital Region, which
10  oversees our business operation for five states,
11  including here in Delaware.
12      In my role as state manager, I am
13  responsible for the product and pricing decisions
14  that we have for the five-state region, as well
15  as work with representatives across all of our
16  regions, or across all of the states that we
17  manage, to balance the cost of insurance while
18  maintaining and making sure we have strong cash
19  reserves, manage our expenses, as well as fulfill
20  our claims paying responsibilities.
21      Our insurance, in our view, provides
22  customers peace of mind.  It restores their lives
23  in the event of an unfortunate event, and as well
24  as replaces their assets, their loss due to a
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 1  claim that we cover.  This is a promise that we
 2  live and breathe every day as a company, as
 3  individuals that represent Allstate.  It's a
 4  promise that we intend to keep every day with our
 5  customers.
 6      We understand, in today's economy,
 7  paying more for your insurance is not easy for
 8  anyone.  We also recognize we have a
 9  responsibility to our customers, our agents, our
10  employees, as well as the shareholders of the
11  Allstate Insurance Company, that we remain a
12  safe, strong, and secure company.
13      We'd like to give you a little
14  background on the recent premium change request
15  that we have pending in regards to our Allstate
16  Indemnity Company.  First slide.
17      Just to make sure customers
18  understand, we have multiple auto companies here
19  in Delaware.  There's various reasons why
20  customers would be placed in one company versus
21  another.  It may be when you came to Allstate.
22  We've opened companies more recently, in the past
23  10 to 12 years.
24      We have certain companies that only
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 1  have specific products available to customers.
 2  And as well as in this circumstance, higher risk
 3  drivers are placed in our Allstate Indemnity
 4  Company, as opposed to the Allstate Insurance
 5  Company or Allstate Property and Casualty
 6  Insurance Company.
 7      Currently, the Allstate Indemnity
 8  Company insures 1238 policyholders.  That
 9  represents 3.4 percent of our overall policies in
10  Delaware, and 4.8 percent of the overall
11  households that we ensure.
12      Higher risk drivers, being defined
13  as those drivers that either have multiple
14  tickets and/or accidents, may have a major
15  violation of some kind, either a driving under
16  the influence, driving while impaired, reckless
17  driving, et cetera, where they would not be
18  eligible for our preferred or standard auto
19  insurance company.  As well as those customers
20  who came to Allstate without having prior
21  insurance, making them ineligible for that
22  standard insurance company, as well.
23      What we'd like to do is give you
24  some information, as far as what has happened
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 1  with the cost of insurance, and that our premiums
 2  have not been able to keep up with that over
 3  recent years.  Wasim Chowdhury, who manages our
 4  actuarial staff, will provide additional
 5  information as to why that is, and where some of
 6  the additional costs are, as they've surfaced in
 7  recent years; what's causing that need for
 8  additional premium to keep up with the changing
 9  costs.
10      You can also see here, we did, as
11  Mr. Reed acknowledged, had an original rate
12  filing of a 15 percent average premium increase.
13  We have worked with representatives from INS
14  Consultants to arrive at a lower overall rate
15  level, at 8 and a half percent.
16      To help customers understand where
17  that is, from an average premium standpoint, our
18  current average six-month premium for an auto
19  policy in the Allstate Indemnity Company is $830.
20  The average proposed increase at 8 and a half
21  percent is $70.
22      A little bit of history on rate
23  changes within this company.  The last time we
24  adjusted rates on an overall level for the
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 1  company was in July of 2008, which was an overall
 2  decrease of 13.1 percent.  The last time we had
 3  any type of increase in overall premium within
 4  this company goes as far back as December of
 5  2002.
 6      A couple of additional information
 7  in regards to that history.  In July of 2008, we
 8  introduced a new overall pricing plan for the
 9  Allstate Indemnity Company.  Although we had not
10  raised premiums for several years, we had seen
11  our business reduce or lose customers over time.
12  We had not taken any substantial action in the
13  market, but certainly, what we recognize is our
14  competition was overall more attractive than
15  Allstate was during the few years leading up to
16  2008.
17      The overall pricing plan that we put
18  in did exactly what we had hoped it to do.  We
19  have been able to grow in the higher risk or
20  non-standard auto business at a pretty
21  substantial rate since this rate plan went in.
22      From 2008 through 2011, our overall
23  customer base within this company has tripled.
24  So the 1238 policyholders at a current count
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 1  represents three times the level of customers
 2  prior to this rating plan being introduced.
 3      That rate of growth in our industry,
 4  and certainly for our company, can come with some
 5  risk.  It appears, at least to us, the rate of
 6  growth put additional profitability pressures on
 7  us.  Wasim is going to share some of the
 8  information as to where that additional rate
 9  pressure is coming from.  We believe this
10  compromised rate agreement at 8 and a half
11  percent puts us in a position to be much more in
12  line with what the competition offers for an
13  overall rate within the higher risk driver
14  market.
15      We want to assure all of our
16  customers, they will not go through this rate
17  change alone.  Our local Delaware Allstate
18  agencies will be fully prepared as to how much a
19  customer's premium is going up, the reasons
20  behind the rate change, as well as the tools and
21  resources they need to help customers to make
22  their insurance more affordable.
23      There are a number of different
24  product features, discounts that are available.
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 1  Wasim is going to take you through, the group
 2  through some of the discounts that are available,
 3  and discount opportunities that would enable
 4  customers to save money, if affordability became
 5  an issue with this recent rate increase, or our
 6  upcoming rate increase.
 7      Our agencies are encouraged, and we
 8  certainly, you know, educate and help them
 9  understand the benefit of a customer renewal
10  assessment, or a personal policy protection
11  review, helping customers with both making sure
12  the policy meets their coverage needs, as well as
13  affordability, in the event that the premium is
14  beyond, you know, their ability, or compromises
15  their ability to pay for their insurance.
16      Allstate has multiple distribution
17  support beyond just the local agency.  We're
18  available 24/7 through 1-800-Allstate, as well as
19  through the web, through Allstate.com.  So
20  customers can get service for their policy
21  through multiple means, any time of the day they
22  wish to.
23      Our renewal notice goes out 40 days
24  in advance or their renewal, providing customers
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 1  the opportunity to review their policy, make any
 2  necessary changes, again, around the
 3  affordability.  As well as if some customers, you
 4  know, want to review whether the competition or
 5  other companies may have an opportunity to help
 6  them save money or have a policy that better
 7  suits their needs.
 8      We have worked very closely with the
 9  Commissioner, her staff, as well as INS
10  Consultants, in regards to this compromise change
11  of 8 and a half percent.  We're comfortable it
12  helps us get our overall premium level more
13  adequate, while also recognizing that it helps
14  our customers from an affordability standpoint to
15  remain within the Allstate Indemnity Company.
16      Allstate has a long and proud
17  tradition of serving customers and businesses in
18  the state of Delaware.  We insure over 27,600
19  autos, 19,200 homes in the state.  In 2010, the
20  most recent year that our claims data has been
21  available to us, we paid over $22.8 million in
22  claims.  We've invested over 10.8 million in
23  business-to-business spending, and invested
24  nearly $460 million in municipal bonds.
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 1      We've paid $1.4 million in State
 2  taxes, and in Delaware, the Allstate Foundation
 3  has provided 26,000 in support of nonprofits to
 4  service the state.
 5      So, in closing, we are absolutely
 6  committed to our customers and small business
 7  owners, the local Allstate agency.  On behalf of
 8  the corporation, we want to thank all of our
 9  customers for the opportunity to service their
10  business needs, and anyone who had the
11  opportunity to come this evening, to hear more
12  information about the rate change that we have
13  currently pending with the state.
14      And now at this time, I'd like to
15  turn the information over to Wasim Chowdhury, who
16  is going to take you more in depth regarding the
17  specific change that we have with the state.
18      MR. CHOWDHURY: Okay.  Thanks for
19  the overview, Ed.  As Ed mentioned, my name is
20  Wasim Chowdhury, and my team manages the rates
21  for Allstate Indemnity in the state of Delaware.
22      I'd like to begin by providing a
23  brief overview about the process we followed to
24  understand if we need to adjustment premiums.
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 1      So in general, our goal is to ensure
 2  that the premium we charge in Allstate's
 3  Indemnity Company across Delaware is sufficient
 4  to cover all of our losses and expenses,
 5  including the claim payouts to our customers.  We
 6  carefully examine historical information to
 7  predict our future inflows, which you can
 8  consider premium, and future outflows, which you
 9  can consider our claims and expenses.
10      In the state of Delaware's indemnity
11  book of business, data shows that our future
12  outflow are expected to be greater than the
13  premium we expect to collect, which is why we
14  have proposed a rate change.
15      As Ed also noted, our losses have
16  considerably increased over the past few years as
17  our business has increased.  I'd like to direct
18  your attention to slide 3, which clearly
19  demonstrates that as our business has increased,
20  so have our losses and expenses relative to
21  premium.  Compared to 2008, our losses and
22  expenses have increased approximately 25 to 30
23  percent in comparison to the premium we're
24  receiving.  This analysis indicated we needed to
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 1  adjust rates to keep up with our expenses and
 2  claims.
 3      The next question we needed to
 4  answer was how do we adjust individual rates to
 5  arrive at the proper average premium that
 6  balances our inflows and our outflows.
 7      As you know, different customers
 8  have different expected losses.  For example, an
 9  inexperienced 16-year-old driver is expected to
10  have higher losses than a 35-year-old driver with
11  many years of driving experience.
12      My team did additional analysis to
13  determine which groups of drivers needed to be
14  adjusted to better reflect their expected loss.
15  Based on our analysis, we found that the single
16  vehicle, non-homeowner, liability-coverage-only
17  customers necessitated an increase higher than
18  average, to match their higher expected loss.
19      On the other hand, the multi-car
20  homeowners with full coverage will see a lower
21  than average increase with this change, because
22  of their lower expected costs.
23      About 20 percent of our business
24  will actually see a decrease with the premium
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 1  change, while about 27 percent will see an
 2  increase greater than 20 percent due to the
 3  higher expected losses.
 4      We understand that increasing rates
 5  on customers can be challenging, but Allstate
 6  provides many Discount options to help customers
 7  lower their costs.
 8      On slide 4, you can see all of the
 9  available discounts Allstate offers to its
10  customers.  On slide 5, I've highlighted a few of
11  them specifically that customers can consider as
12  options to lower their rates.
13      The Allstate easy pay plan discount
14  applies when the policy is paid through the
15  Allstate easy pay plan, which means automatic
16  withdrawal from one's checking account.
17      Next, the homeownership discount
18  applies when the named insured and/or spouse owns
19  a home, townhome, condominium, or mobile home.
20      Next, the defensive driver discount
21  applies when an operator receives a certificate
22  certifying voluntary attendance and successful
23  completion of an accident prevention course or
24  motorcycle rider course approved by the Insurance
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 1  Commissioner.
 2      I want to reiterate that the premium
 3  changes are taken very, very seriously by
 4  Allstate, and we fully understand the impact of
 5  these changes on our customers.  It's equally
 6  important to understand that we must carefully
 7  balance our premium inflows with our expected
 8  costs, to ensure that we make good on our promise
 9  to our customers.
10      Thank you for your time this
11  evening, and I will hand the floor back to Ed.
12      MR. CLARK: Actually, that's our
13  closing for now.  Again, we appreciate
14  everyone's, you know, hearing the information in
15  regards to our situation with the current
16  company.  We appreciate the opportunity to share
17  our experience, and certainly value our
18  customers' continued support and appreciation of,
19  you know, doing business with Allstate.  Thank
20  you.
21      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Thank you


22  for your comments.  Before we go to INS, I do
23  have a couple of questions.  I'm not an actuary,
24  so can you -- you said -- and maybe I heard you
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 1  wrong.  You said premium enclosed premium
 2  outflow?
 3      MR. CHOWDHURY: Premium inflows and
 4  outflows.
 5      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Oh,
 6  inflow.
 7      MR. CHOWDHURY: Yes.  The premium
 8  collected is inflow to the company.
 9      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Got you.
10  Just wanted to make sure I understood you.  The
11  other question I have is the premium swing.  When
12  I looked at the graph that you had provided on
13  the file, you had -- you said roughly 20 percent
14  of the people will get 20 percent or more?
15      MR. CHOWDHURY: 27 percent of the
16  customers will see an increase greater than 20
17  percent.
18      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Greater
19  than 20 percent.  Overall, when I looked at that,
20  it appeared that 39 percent of the policyholder
21  base would see at least 10 percent, or a double
22  digit increase or greater.
23      MR. CHOWDHURY: Okay.
24      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: You also
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 1  have that on the other side of the pendulum, the
 2  swing of the decreases, as well.  When I looked
 3  at the 10 percent, let's say the 10 percent to 20
 4  percent.  Those that are getting 20 percent or
 5  more are considered very high risk?  They're the
 6  ones getting that increase?  Or is it coming in
 7  those zip codes, or in those areas?
 8      I'm trying to establish like the --
 9  to me, when I looked at that, it appeared that
10  I'm getting a 10 percent increase even if I'm one
11  of your good substandard drivers -- if there's
12  such a thing as a good substandard driver -- but
13  I'm getting a 10 percent increase because I'm in
14  this zip code.
15      MR. CHOWDHURY: Okay.
16      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Or I'm in
17  this area, maybe where you have more higher
18  claims or something.  Can you explain that?
19      MR. CHOWDHURY: Sure.  So we are
20  touching and updating the rates for multiple
21  rating plans.  And a rating plan is essentially
22  one piece that goes into determining your final
23  rate.  So different factors that go into
24  determining your rate are your age, where you
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 1  live, your accident history, violation history.
 2  So there are multiple factors that ultimately
 3  determine the final rate.
 4      We are updating the rates for many
 5  of those rating plans.  Territory is actually one
 6  rating plan that we are not updating.  So all
 7  else equal, two customers in different
 8  territories should not see a different rate
 9  change.  Assuming all else equal.  Same exact
10  risk profile, one maybe in Wilmington, one maybe
11  in Dover.  But as long as they are the same exact
12  risk otherwise, there should not be a difference
13  in rate.
14      However, I did mention that we are
15  updating the factors for other characteristics.
16  And so, you do have that swing, since there are
17  many factors that are being updated, to the
18  extent that you're a customer that is getting the
19  increase due to multiple factors, you're going to
20  be on the higher end of the histogram on the rate
21  change distribution.
22      So on average, it seems that the
23  single vehicle, the ones who do not own a home,
24  and only have liability coverage, so your bodily
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 1  injury, property damage, personal injury
 2  protection, and uninsured motorist coverage,
 3  they're the ones who are on the higher end of
 4  that distribution.
 5      And then on the flip side, the rates
 6  compared to average have gone down for the
 7  customers who have multiple cars, who own a home,
 8  and have more than just the liability coverage,
 9  which includes collision coverage and
10  comprehensive coverage.
11      So, multiple factors ultimately
12  result in the final rate.  We are touching
13  multiple factors.  And it just depends on your
14  characteristics, and if you happen to, for each
15  characteristic, be on the end where the rates are
16  increasing, when you put that all together,
17  you're going to see the larger than average
18  increase.
19      But again, on the flip side, if
20  you're a customer that is on the better side of
21  each characteristic that we're updating, then
22  you'll see --
23      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: A
24  decrease?
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 1      MR. CLARK: And the way we view
 2  that, Gene, from a business perspective, is by
 3  getting to the most accurate rate even at an
 4  individual customer group around the
 5  characteristics that Wasim described.  That way,
 6  the customers whose performance is better than
 7  their current rate, that they have an opportunity
 8  to save money, or potentially pay less than the
 9  average rate that they have.
10      If we -- if our pursuit is to try to
11  minimize the overall experience within the book,
12  we would try to center more of the, you know,
13  overall rate change around the -- you know, the
14  eight and a half percent within this change that
15  we're making here.
16      We think that's, you know, not in
17  the best interests of a good percentage of our
18  overall customer group.  And that would be a
19  group that we would hope to have the opportunity
20  to retain, as well as, you know, grow within this
21  book of business.  We certainly want to grow in
22  the other segments, but not at the current rate
23  level that we charge.  We need a more adequate
24  premium to be able to do it.  And that's what
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 1  creates what we refer to as spread within the
 2  overall rate level.
 3      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Okay.
 4  Thank you.  One last question.  Credit score, as
 5  you know, is used for new policyholders, not
 6  existing policyholders, under Delaware law.  If
 7  someone were to come to Allstate and had a very
 8  clean record, but had a very poor credit score
 9  rating, would they go to the substandard company,
10  or could they also be written in the -- the
11  better, or however --
12      MR. CLARK: Yeah.  We do not have
13  any underwriting guideline in regards to your
14  credit score here in Delaware.  So a customer for
15  all other perspective qualifies for the
16  Allstate -- today it's the Allstate Property and
17  Casualty Company, which is our standard auto
18  company, they would not be in any way restricted
19  or required to pay more, or be placed in a higher
20  risk auto company.
21      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Okay.
22      MR. CLARK: We don't have any
23  guidelines, and we believe that's in accordance
24  with what we'd be asked to do here in the state.
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 1      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Very
 2  good.  Thank you.  INS.
 3      MR. MACESIC: Okay.  INS
 4  Consultants, Inc., has been retained by the
 5  Delaware Department of Insurance to conduct an
 6  independent actuarial review of Allstate
 7  Indemnity Company's private passenger automobile
 8  rate filing that was submitted on November 14th,
 9  2011.
10      The scope includes a review of the
11  filings submitted by Allstate Indemnity, an
12  evaluation of the key assumptions contained in
13  the company's rate level analysis, and the
14  independent development of an indicated rate
15  level change.
16      The rate filing was submitted by
17  Rick Wisniewski, associate state filings director
18  of Allstate Indemnity.  This review was conducted
19  by David J. Macesic, ACAS, MAAA, and key elements


20  of this review were peer reviewed by Robert W.
21  Gardner, FCAS, MAAA.
22      INS has reviewed this submission in
23  its entirety, along with other filing material
24  requested of and received from Allstate
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 1  Indemnity.  The rate filing requested an overall
 2  rate level change of plus 15.0 percent.
 3      INS finds that the proposed rate
 4  level change of plus 15.0 percent is not
 5  substantiated by the materials received from the
 6  company.  INS finds that a proposed rate level
 7  change in an amount no larger than plus 8.8
 8  percent is substantiated by the filing material
 9  received.
10      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Is that
11  your report?
12      MR. MACESIC: That's it.
13      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: That was
14  pretty quick, Mr. Macesic.  Good report.  Are
15  there any questions from Allstate on that report?
16      MR. CLARK: No, sir.
17      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: There's
18  no one here from the public, so I will ask a few
19  questions.  Can you please tell me what an ACAS
20  and an MAAA and an FCAS are?
21      MR. MACESIC: Associate of the
22  Casualty Actuarial Society, versus a Fellow of
23  the Casualty Actuarial Society.  And MAAA is a
24  Member of the American Academy of Actuaries,
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 1  which means we are accredited actuaries.
 2      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Okay.
 3  All right.  I don't have any questions on your
 4  report.  You did a great job working with our
 5  rate analyst and rate assistant director.  I
 6  appreciate you doing that, and working with the
 7  Commissioner on this file, and also working with
 8  the Allstate actuary so that we could come to a
 9  change in the overall indicated rate level amount
10  of, you said, 8.8 percent?
11      MR. MACESIC: No.  It's not larger
12  than plus 8.8 percent.
13      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Okay.
14  Not larger than 8.8 percent.  I appreciate your
15  working with the Department and our staff.
16      MR. MACESIC: Thank you.
17      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: I'm going
18  to leave the record open until -- since there's
19  nobody here since 6:00, I'm only going to leave
20  the record open for another ten minutes.  We'll
21  come back, take a ten minute recess, come back.
22  If there's no one from the public here, we will
23  go ahead and close out the hearing.  I appreciate
24  everyone here that was here in attendance.
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 1      Let me just ask Rhonda a quick
 2  question.  As far as procedural, I know you have
 3  it in the notes, but if you could tell me, are we
 4  leaving this open until Friday, the record?
 5      MS. WEST: Yeah.  What we'll do,
 6  because in case there was something now, we'll
 7  leave it open until Friday the 23rd, and then we
 8  close it out officially at that point.
 9      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: That's
10  Rhonda West, regulatory specialist for the
11  Department.  That's what we'll do.  Take a
12  ten-minute recess, and then we'll come back.  If
13  no one from the public is here at 20 of 7, we
14  will conclude the hearing tonight.
15      (Briefly off the record)
16      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Okay.
17  We're back on the record.  It is now 20 minutes
18  to 7.  There are no members from the public
19  present, and as our regulatory specialist Rhonda
20  West stated, we will keep it open for any written
21  comments until this Friday at 4:30 p.m.
22      MS. WEST: We've not received any
23  yet.
24      DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED: Yeah.  I
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 1  think that's important for the record.  We
 2  haven't received any comments to date.  We
 3  appreciate the members of Allstate being here
 4  today, and we appreciate INS for giving their
 5  overview of the filing submission.
 6      So, we will let the record reflect,
 7  again, no public attendance, and we are closing
 8  this public session as of now.  Thank you all for
 9  coming.
10      (Hearing concluded at 6:40 p.m.)
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
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 1                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Good
  


 2    evening.  This is a public information session,
  


 3    Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company private
  


 4    passenger automobile rate filing.  It is Tuesday,
  


 5    March 20th, and we are going to start the public
  


 6    session, which will be from 6 to 8 p.m.
  


 7                 We will let the record reflect that
  


 8    at the present time, we have members from
  


 9    Allstate that are here, members from INS, members
  


10    from the DOI, but we currently do not have any
  


11    members from the public present at this meeting.
  


12                 We will go through this
  


13    presentation.  I will then leave the record open
  


14    after the parties are finished for another 15
  


15    minutes, so if someone from the public comes back
  


16    in, we will ask the parties to briefly go through
  


17    and summarize this again.  And we will close it
  


18    out at 6:30, if no one from the public attends.
  


19                 So, we're going to get started.
  


20    Welcome to the Delaware Insurance Department's
  


21    public information session regarding the Allstate
  


22    Indemnity Insurance Company private passenger
  


23    automobile rate filing.  My name is Gene Reed.
  


24    I'm the Deputy Insurance Commissioner for the
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 1    Delaware Insurance Commissioner, Karen Weldin
  


 2    Stewart.  I will facilitate tonight's public
  


 3    information session.  Commissioner Stewart will
  


 4    make the ultimate decision to approve or
  


 5    disapprove this proposed rate filing.
  


 6                 Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company
  


 7    has filed a private passenger automobile rate
  


 8    filing pursuant to Delaware Code Title 18,
  


 9    Chapter 25, rates and rating organizations.
  


10    Allstate indemnity requested an overall rate
  


11    level change of 15 percent, with an indicated
  


12    rate level change of plus 27 percent.
  


13                 Allstate indemnity then submitted a
  


14    revised indicated rate level change of plus 26.4
  


15    percent.  After questions were asked and
  


16    responded to by the Department and Allstate
  


17    indemnity actuaries, Allstate intends to submit a
  


18    filing amendment with revised detailed rate
  


19    schedules for an proposed rate level change of
  


20    plus 8.5 percent.
  


21                 The purpose of this session is for
  


22    the Department of Insurance to receive comments
  


23    from the public to aid in reaching a decision on
  


24    the proposed private passenger automobile rate
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 1    filing.
  


 2                 In reaching its decision, the
  


 3    Department will consider any comments presented
  


 4    here today, along with any comment submitted in
  


 5    writing.  The entire record concerning the
  


 6    proposed private passenger automobile rate
  


 7    filing, including the transcript of today's
  


 8    session, will be reviewed before any final
  


 9    conclusions are reached.
  


10                 Today's session, as you can see, is
  


11    being transcribed by a court reporter.  After the
  


12    Department receives the typed transcript, the
  


13    Department will make it available on its internet
  


14    website at www.delawareinsurance.gov.  You may
  


15    download a copy of the transcript from the
  


16    Department's website at that time.
  


17                 If you do not have internet access,
  


18    you may view the transcript at the Department's
  


19    offices in Dover and Wilmington, but please call
  


20    to schedule an appointment before visiting the
  


21    Department's offices.  You may also submit a
  


22    request for copies of a particular document by
  


23    fax or e-mail.
  


24                 As explained earlier, the purpose of
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 1    today's session is to provide a public forum for
  


 2    anyone to give information or comments concerning
  


 3    the proposed Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company
  


 4    private passenger automobile rate filing.  Please
  


 5    address your comments to this topic only.  We ask
  


 6    that you please be as concise as possible, and
  


 7    limit your remarks to around 8 minutes.
  


 8                 If you are speaking, we ask that you
  


 9    include your name on a list of speakers that is
  


10    available at the sign-in table.  I hope you have
  


11    all signed up and have already indicated that you
  


12    wish to speak.  If you have not done so, please
  


13    do so now.
  


14                 We also ask that you indicate if you
  


15    are speaking on your own behalf or if you are
  


16    speaking in any type of representative capacity.
  


17    For example, if you are a policyholder of
  


18    Allstate Indemnity.
  


19                 Because of the informal nature of
  


20    today's session, there will not be any sworn
  


21    testimony.  Cross-examination and similar
  


22    questioning of speakers or other representatives
  


23    of the parties likewise will not be permitted.
  


24                 However, you may pose factual
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 1    questions to the applicants during your oral
  


 2    comments.  Following today's session, the
  


 3    Department will require Allstate Indemnity
  


 4    Insurance Company to respond in writing to all
  


 5    questions raised by the Department and public
  


 6    during this session, and will make the responses
  


 7    available on our website.
  


 8                 Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company
  


 9    and the Insurance Department's actuary firm, INS
  


10    Consultants, which reviewed the private passenger
  


11    automobile rate filing, have each sent
  


12    representatives to contribute to this public
  


13    information session.
  


14                 Ed Clark, Capital Region state
  


15    manager, and Wasim Chowdhury, assistant actuary,
  


16    are here on behalf of Allstate Indemnity, and
  


17    Dave Macesic of INS Consultants, the Department's
  


18    actuary for this matter, will be making
  


19    introductory statements.
  


20                 Their statements are intended to
  


21    give an overview of the private passenger
  


22    automobile rate filing as a preface to the public
  


23    comments session.  Their statements will be
  


24    recorded by the court reporter, and will be
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 1    posted on the Department's website.  The
  


 2    representatives from Allstate Indemnity will be
  


 3    speaking first.
  


 4                 MR. CLARK:  Good evening, ladies and
  


 5    gentlemen.  Thank you for joining us for the
  


 6    discussion of our current premium change request
  


 7    we have pending with the Delaware Department of
  


 8    Insurance.  My name is Ed Clark.  I'm the state
  


 9    manager for Allstate's Capital Region, which
  


10    oversees our business operation for five states,
  


11    including here in Delaware.
  


12                 In my role as state manager, I am
  


13    responsible for the product and pricing decisions
  


14    that we have for the five-state region, as well
  


15    as work with representatives across all of our
  


16    regions, or across all of the states that we
  


17    manage, to balance the cost of insurance while
  


18    maintaining and making sure we have strong cash
  


19    reserves, manage our expenses, as well as fulfill
  


20    our claims paying responsibilities.
  


21                 Our insurance, in our view, provides
  


22    customers peace of mind.  It restores their lives
  


23    in the event of an unfortunate event, and as well
  


24    as replaces their assets, their loss due to a
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 1    claim that we cover.  This is a promise that we
  


 2    live and breathe every day as a company, as
  


 3    individuals that represent Allstate.  It's a
  


 4    promise that we intend to keep every day with our
  


 5    customers.
  


 6                 We understand, in today's economy,
  


 7    paying more for your insurance is not easy for
  


 8    anyone.  We also recognize we have a
  


 9    responsibility to our customers, our agents, our
  


10    employees, as well as the shareholders of the
  


11    Allstate Insurance Company, that we remain a
  


12    safe, strong, and secure company.
  


13                 We'd like to give you a little
  


14    background on the recent premium change request
  


15    that we have pending in regards to our Allstate
  


16    Indemnity Company.  First slide.
  


17                 Just to make sure customers
  


18    understand, we have multiple auto companies here
  


19    in Delaware.  There's various reasons why
  


20    customers would be placed in one company versus
  


21    another.  It may be when you came to Allstate.
  


22    We've opened companies more recently, in the past
  


23    10 to 12 years.
  


24                 We have certain companies that only
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 1    have specific products available to customers.
  


 2    And as well as in this circumstance, higher risk
  


 3    drivers are placed in our Allstate Indemnity
  


 4    Company, as opposed to the Allstate Insurance
  


 5    Company or Allstate Property and Casualty
  


 6    Insurance Company.
  


 7                 Currently, the Allstate Indemnity
  


 8    Company insures 1238 policyholders.  That
  


 9    represents 3.4 percent of our overall policies in
  


10    Delaware, and 4.8 percent of the overall
  


11    households that we ensure.
  


12                 Higher risk drivers, being defined
  


13    as those drivers that either have multiple
  


14    tickets and/or accidents, may have a major
  


15    violation of some kind, either a driving under
  


16    the influence, driving while impaired, reckless
  


17    driving, et cetera, where they would not be
  


18    eligible for our preferred or standard auto
  


19    insurance company.  As well as those customers
  


20    who came to Allstate without having prior
  


21    insurance, making them ineligible for that
  


22    standard insurance company, as well.
  


23                 What we'd like to do is give you
  


24    some information, as far as what has happened
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 1    with the cost of insurance, and that our premiums
  


 2    have not been able to keep up with that over
  


 3    recent years.  Wasim Chowdhury, who manages our
  


 4    actuarial staff, will provide additional
  


 5    information as to why that is, and where some of
  


 6    the additional costs are, as they've surfaced in
  


 7    recent years; what's causing that need for
  


 8    additional premium to keep up with the changing
  


 9    costs.
  


10                 You can also see here, we did, as
  


11    Mr. Reed acknowledged, had an original rate
  


12    filing of a 15 percent average premium increase.
  


13    We have worked with representatives from INS
  


14    Consultants to arrive at a lower overall rate
  


15    level, at 8 and a half percent.
  


16                 To help customers understand where
  


17    that is, from an average premium standpoint, our
  


18    current average six-month premium for an auto
  


19    policy in the Allstate Indemnity Company is $830.
  


20    The average proposed increase at 8 and a half
  


21    percent is $70.
  


22                 A little bit of history on rate
  


23    changes within this company.  The last time we
  


24    adjusted rates on an overall level for the
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 1    company was in July of 2008, which was an overall
  


 2    decrease of 13.1 percent.  The last time we had
  


 3    any type of increase in overall premium within
  


 4    this company goes as far back as December of
  


 5    2002.
  


 6                 A couple of additional information
  


 7    in regards to that history.  In July of 2008, we
  


 8    introduced a new overall pricing plan for the
  


 9    Allstate Indemnity Company.  Although we had not
  


10    raised premiums for several years, we had seen
  


11    our business reduce or lose customers over time.
  


12    We had not taken any substantial action in the
  


13    market, but certainly, what we recognize is our
  


14    competition was overall more attractive than
  


15    Allstate was during the few years leading up to
  


16    2008.
  


17                 The overall pricing plan that we put
  


18    in did exactly what we had hoped it to do.  We
  


19    have been able to grow in the higher risk or
  


20    non-standard auto business at a pretty
  


21    substantial rate since this rate plan went in.
  


22                 From 2008 through 2011, our overall
  


23    customer base within this company has tripled.
  


24    So the 1238 policyholders at a current count
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 1    represents three times the level of customers
  


 2    prior to this rating plan being introduced.
  


 3                 That rate of growth in our industry,
  


 4    and certainly for our company, can come with some
  


 5    risk.  It appears, at least to us, the rate of
  


 6    growth put additional profitability pressures on
  


 7    us.  Wasim is going to share some of the
  


 8    information as to where that additional rate
  


 9    pressure is coming from.  We believe this
  


10    compromised rate agreement at 8 and a half
  


11    percent puts us in a position to be much more in
  


12    line with what the competition offers for an
  


13    overall rate within the higher risk driver
  


14    market.
  


15                 We want to assure all of our
  


16    customers, they will not go through this rate
  


17    change alone.  Our local Delaware Allstate
  


18    agencies will be fully prepared as to how much a
  


19    customer's premium is going up, the reasons
  


20    behind the rate change, as well as the tools and
  


21    resources they need to help customers to make
  


22    their insurance more affordable.
  


23                 There are a number of different
  


24    product features, discounts that are available.
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 1    Wasim is going to take you through, the group
  


 2    through some of the discounts that are available,
  


 3    and discount opportunities that would enable
  


 4    customers to save money, if affordability became
  


 5    an issue with this recent rate increase, or our
  


 6    upcoming rate increase.
  


 7                 Our agencies are encouraged, and we
  


 8    certainly, you know, educate and help them
  


 9    understand the benefit of a customer renewal
  


10    assessment, or a personal policy protection
  


11    review, helping customers with both making sure
  


12    the policy meets their coverage needs, as well as
  


13    affordability, in the event that the premium is
  


14    beyond, you know, their ability, or compromises
  


15    their ability to pay for their insurance.
  


16                 Allstate has multiple distribution
  


17    support beyond just the local agency.  We're
  


18    available 24/7 through 1-800-Allstate, as well as
  


19    through the web, through Allstate.com.  So
  


20    customers can get service for their policy
  


21    through multiple means, any time of the day they
  


22    wish to.
  


23                 Our renewal notice goes out 40 days
  


24    in advance or their renewal, providing customers
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 1    the opportunity to review their policy, make any
  


 2    necessary changes, again, around the
  


 3    affordability.  As well as if some customers, you
  


 4    know, want to review whether the competition or
  


 5    other companies may have an opportunity to help
  


 6    them save money or have a policy that better
  


 7    suits their needs.
  


 8                 We have worked very closely with the
  


 9    Commissioner, her staff, as well as INS
  


10    Consultants, in regards to this compromise change
  


11    of 8 and a half percent.  We're comfortable it
  


12    helps us get our overall premium level more
  


13    adequate, while also recognizing that it helps
  


14    our customers from an affordability standpoint to
  


15    remain within the Allstate Indemnity Company.
  


16                 Allstate has a long and proud
  


17    tradition of serving customers and businesses in
  


18    the state of Delaware.  We insure over 27,600
  


19    autos, 19,200 homes in the state.  In 2010, the
  


20    most recent year that our claims data has been
  


21    available to us, we paid over $22.8 million in
  


22    claims.  We've invested over 10.8 million in
  


23    business-to-business spending, and invested
  


24    nearly $460 million in municipal bonds.
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 1                 We've paid $1.4 million in State
  


 2    taxes, and in Delaware, the Allstate Foundation
  


 3    has provided 26,000 in support of nonprofits to
  


 4    service the state.
  


 5                 So, in closing, we are absolutely
  


 6    committed to our customers and small business
  


 7    owners, the local Allstate agency.  On behalf of
  


 8    the corporation, we want to thank all of our
  


 9    customers for the opportunity to service their
  


10    business needs, and anyone who had the
  


11    opportunity to come this evening, to hear more
  


12    information about the rate change that we have
  


13    currently pending with the state.
  


14                 And now at this time, I'd like to
  


15    turn the information over to Wasim Chowdhury, who
  


16    is going to take you more in depth regarding the
  


17    specific change that we have with the state.
  


18                 MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.  Thanks for
  


19    the overview, Ed.  As Ed mentioned, my name is
  


20    Wasim Chowdhury, and my team manages the rates
  


21    for Allstate Indemnity in the state of Delaware.
  


22                 I'd like to begin by providing a
  


23    brief overview about the process we followed to
  


24    understand if we need to adjustment premiums.
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 1                 So in general, our goal is to ensure
  


 2    that the premium we charge in Allstate's
  


 3    Indemnity Company across Delaware is sufficient
  


 4    to cover all of our losses and expenses,
  


 5    including the claim payouts to our customers.  We
  


 6    carefully examine historical information to
  


 7    predict our future inflows, which you can
  


 8    consider premium, and future outflows, which you
  


 9    can consider our claims and expenses.
  


10                 In the state of Delaware's indemnity
  


11    book of business, data shows that our future
  


12    outflow are expected to be greater than the
  


13    premium we expect to collect, which is why we
  


14    have proposed a rate change.
  


15                 As Ed also noted, our losses have
  


16    considerably increased over the past few years as
  


17    our business has increased.  I'd like to direct
  


18    your attention to slide 3, which clearly
  


19    demonstrates that as our business has increased,
  


20    so have our losses and expenses relative to
  


21    premium.  Compared to 2008, our losses and
  


22    expenses have increased approximately 25 to 30
  


23    percent in comparison to the premium we're
  


24    receiving.  This analysis indicated we needed to
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 1    adjust rates to keep up with our expenses and
  


 2    claims.
  


 3                 The next question we needed to
  


 4    answer was how do we adjust individual rates to
  


 5    arrive at the proper average premium that
  


 6    balances our inflows and our outflows.
  


 7                 As you know, different customers
  


 8    have different expected losses.  For example, an
  


 9    inexperienced 16-year-old driver is expected to
  


10    have higher losses than a 35-year-old driver with
  


11    many years of driving experience.
  


12                 My team did additional analysis to
  


13    determine which groups of drivers needed to be
  


14    adjusted to better reflect their expected loss.
  


15    Based on our analysis, we found that the single
  


16    vehicle, non-homeowner, liability-coverage-only
  


17    customers necessitated an increase higher than
  


18    average, to match their higher expected loss.
  


19                 On the other hand, the multi-car
  


20    homeowners with full coverage will see a lower
  


21    than average increase with this change, because
  


22    of their lower expected costs.
  


23                 About 20 percent of our business
  


24    will actually see a decrease with the premium
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 1    change, while about 27 percent will see an
  


 2    increase greater than 20 percent due to the
  


 3    higher expected losses.
  


 4                 We understand that increasing rates
  


 5    on customers can be challenging, but Allstate
  


 6    provides many Discount options to help customers
  


 7    lower their costs.
  


 8                 On slide 4, you can see all of the
  


 9    available discounts Allstate offers to its
  


10    customers.  On slide 5, I've highlighted a few of
  


11    them specifically that customers can consider as
  


12    options to lower their rates.
  


13                 The Allstate easy pay plan discount
  


14    applies when the policy is paid through the
  


15    Allstate easy pay plan, which means automatic
  


16    withdrawal from one's checking account.
  


17                 Next, the homeownership discount
  


18    applies when the named insured and/or spouse owns
  


19    a home, townhome, condominium, or mobile home.
  


20                 Next, the defensive driver discount
  


21    applies when an operator receives a certificate
  


22    certifying voluntary attendance and successful
  


23    completion of an accident prevention course or
  


24    motorcycle rider course approved by the Insurance
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 1    Commissioner.
  


 2                 I want to reiterate that the premium
  


 3    changes are taken very, very seriously by
  


 4    Allstate, and we fully understand the impact of
  


 5    these changes on our customers.  It's equally
  


 6    important to understand that we must carefully
  


 7    balance our premium inflows with our expected
  


 8    costs, to ensure that we make good on our promise
  


 9    to our customers.
  


10                 Thank you for your time this
  


11    evening, and I will hand the floor back to Ed.
  


12                 MR. CLARK:  Actually, that's our
  


13    closing for now.  Again, we appreciate
  


14    everyone's, you know, hearing the information in
  


15    regards to our situation with the current
  


16    company.  We appreciate the opportunity to share
  


17    our experience, and certainly value our
  


18    customers' continued support and appreciation of,
  


19    you know, doing business with Allstate.  Thank
  


20    you.
  


21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Thank you
  


22    for your comments.  Before we go to INS, I do
  


23    have a couple of questions.  I'm not an actuary,
  


24    so can you -- you said -- and maybe I heard you
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 1    wrong.  You said premium enclosed premium
  


 2    outflow?
  


 3                 MR. CHOWDHURY:  Premium inflows and
  


 4    outflows.
  


 5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Oh,
  


 6    inflow.
  


 7                 MR. CHOWDHURY:  Yes.  The premium
  


 8    collected is inflow to the company.
  


 9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Got you.
  


10    Just wanted to make sure I understood you.  The
  


11    other question I have is the premium swing.  When
  


12    I looked at the graph that you had provided on
  


13    the file, you had -- you said roughly 20 percent
  


14    of the people will get 20 percent or more?
  


15                 MR. CHOWDHURY:  27 percent of the
  


16    customers will see an increase greater than 20
  


17    percent.
  


18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Greater
  


19    than 20 percent.  Overall, when I looked at that,
  


20    it appeared that 39 percent of the policyholder
  


21    base would see at least 10 percent, or a double
  


22    digit increase or greater.
  


23                 MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.
  


24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  You also
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 1    have that on the other side of the pendulum, the
  


 2    swing of the decreases, as well.  When I looked
  


 3    at the 10 percent, let's say the 10 percent to 20
  


 4    percent.  Those that are getting 20 percent or
  


 5    more are considered very high risk?  They're the
  


 6    ones getting that increase?  Or is it coming in
  


 7    those zip codes, or in those areas?
  


 8                 I'm trying to establish like the --
  


 9    to me, when I looked at that, it appeared that
  


10    I'm getting a 10 percent increase even if I'm one
  


11    of your good substandard drivers -- if there's
  


12    such a thing as a good substandard driver -- but
  


13    I'm getting a 10 percent increase because I'm in
  


14    this zip code.
  


15                 MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.
  


16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Or I'm in
  


17    this area, maybe where you have more higher
  


18    claims or something.  Can you explain that?
  


19                 MR. CHOWDHURY:  Sure.  So we are
  


20    touching and updating the rates for multiple
  


21    rating plans.  And a rating plan is essentially
  


22    one piece that goes into determining your final
  


23    rate.  So different factors that go into
  


24    determining your rate are your age, where you
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 1    live, your accident history, violation history.
  


 2    So there are multiple factors that ultimately
  


 3    determine the final rate.
  


 4                 We are updating the rates for many
  


 5    of those rating plans.  Territory is actually one
  


 6    rating plan that we are not updating.  So all
  


 7    else equal, two customers in different
  


 8    territories should not see a different rate
  


 9    change.  Assuming all else equal.  Same exact
  


10    risk profile, one maybe in Wilmington, one maybe
  


11    in Dover.  But as long as they are the same exact
  


12    risk otherwise, there should not be a difference
  


13    in rate.
  


14                 However, I did mention that we are
  


15    updating the factors for other characteristics.
  


16    And so, you do have that swing, since there are
  


17    many factors that are being updated, to the
  


18    extent that you're a customer that is getting the
  


19    increase due to multiple factors, you're going to
  


20    be on the higher end of the histogram on the rate
  


21    change distribution.
  


22                 So on average, it seems that the
  


23    single vehicle, the ones who do not own a home,
  


24    and only have liability coverage, so your bodily
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 1    injury, property damage, personal injury
  


 2    protection, and uninsured motorist coverage,
  


 3    they're the ones who are on the higher end of
  


 4    that distribution.
  


 5                 And then on the flip side, the rates
  


 6    compared to average have gone down for the
  


 7    customers who have multiple cars, who own a home,
  


 8    and have more than just the liability coverage,
  


 9    which includes collision coverage and
  


10    comprehensive coverage.
  


11                 So, multiple factors ultimately
  


12    result in the final rate.  We are touching
  


13    multiple factors.  And it just depends on your
  


14    characteristics, and if you happen to, for each
  


15    characteristic, be on the end where the rates are
  


16    increasing, when you put that all together,
  


17    you're going to see the larger than average
  


18    increase.
  


19                 But again, on the flip side, if
  


20    you're a customer that is on the better side of
  


21    each characteristic that we're updating, then
  


22    you'll see --
  


23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  A
  


24    decrease?
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 1                 MR. CLARK:  And the way we view
  


 2    that, Gene, from a business perspective, is by
  


 3    getting to the most accurate rate even at an
  


 4    individual customer group around the
  


 5    characteristics that Wasim described.  That way,
  


 6    the customers whose performance is better than
  


 7    their current rate, that they have an opportunity
  


 8    to save money, or potentially pay less than the
  


 9    average rate that they have.
  


10                 If we -- if our pursuit is to try to
  


11    minimize the overall experience within the book,
  


12    we would try to center more of the, you know,
  


13    overall rate change around the -- you know, the
  


14    eight and a half percent within this change that
  


15    we're making here.
  


16                 We think that's, you know, not in
  


17    the best interests of a good percentage of our
  


18    overall customer group.  And that would be a
  


19    group that we would hope to have the opportunity
  


20    to retain, as well as, you know, grow within this
  


21    book of business.  We certainly want to grow in
  


22    the other segments, but not at the current rate
  


23    level that we charge.  We need a more adequate
  


24    premium to be able to do it.  And that's what
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 1    creates what we refer to as spread within the
  


 2    overall rate level.
  


 3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.
  


 4    Thank you.  One last question.  Credit score, as
  


 5    you know, is used for new policyholders, not
  


 6    existing policyholders, under Delaware law.  If
  


 7    someone were to come to Allstate and had a very
  


 8    clean record, but had a very poor credit score
  


 9    rating, would they go to the substandard company,
  


10    or could they also be written in the -- the
  


11    better, or however --
  


12                 MR. CLARK:  Yeah.  We do not have
  


13    any underwriting guideline in regards to your
  


14    credit score here in Delaware.  So a customer for
  


15    all other perspective qualifies for the
  


16    Allstate -- today it's the Allstate Property and
  


17    Casualty Company, which is our standard auto
  


18    company, they would not be in any way restricted
  


19    or required to pay more, or be placed in a higher
  


20    risk auto company.
  


21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.
  


22                 MR. CLARK:  We don't have any
  


23    guidelines, and we believe that's in accordance
  


24    with what we'd be asked to do here in the state.
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 1                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Very
  


 2    good.  Thank you.  INS.
  


 3                 MR. MACESIC:  Okay.  INS
  


 4    Consultants, Inc., has been retained by the
  


 5    Delaware Department of Insurance to conduct an
  


 6    independent actuarial review of Allstate
  


 7    Indemnity Company's private passenger automobile
  


 8    rate filing that was submitted on November 14th,
  


 9    2011.
  


10                 The scope includes a review of the
  


11    filings submitted by Allstate Indemnity, an
  


12    evaluation of the key assumptions contained in
  


13    the company's rate level analysis, and the
  


14    independent development of an indicated rate
  


15    level change.
  


16                 The rate filing was submitted by
  


17    Rick Wisniewski, associate state filings director
  


18    of Allstate Indemnity.  This review was conducted
  


19    by David J. Macesic, ACAS, MAAA, and key elements
  


20    of this review were peer reviewed by Robert W.
  


21    Gardner, FCAS, MAAA.
  


22                 INS has reviewed this submission in
  


23    its entirety, along with other filing material
  


24    requested of and received from Allstate
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 1    Indemnity.  The rate filing requested an overall
  


 2    rate level change of plus 15.0 percent.
  


 3                 INS finds that the proposed rate
  


 4    level change of plus 15.0 percent is not
  


 5    substantiated by the materials received from the
  


 6    company.  INS finds that a proposed rate level
  


 7    change in an amount no larger than plus 8.8
  


 8    percent is substantiated by the filing material
  


 9    received.
  


10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Is that
  


11    your report?
  


12                 MR. MACESIC:  That's it.
  


13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That was
  


14    pretty quick, Mr. Macesic.  Good report.  Are
  


15    there any questions from Allstate on that report?
  


16                 MR. CLARK:  No, sir.
  


17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  There's
  


18    no one here from the public, so I will ask a few
  


19    questions.  Can you please tell me what an ACAS
  


20    and an MAAA and an FCAS are?
  


21                 MR. MACESIC:  Associate of the
  


22    Casualty Actuarial Society, versus a Fellow of
  


23    the Casualty Actuarial Society.  And MAAA is a
  


24    Member of the American Academy of Actuaries,
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 1    which means we are accredited actuaries.
  


 2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.
  


 3    All right.  I don't have any questions on your
  


 4    report.  You did a great job working with our
  


 5    rate analyst and rate assistant director.  I
  


 6    appreciate you doing that, and working with the
  


 7    Commissioner on this file, and also working with
  


 8    the Allstate actuary so that we could come to a
  


 9    change in the overall indicated rate level amount
  


10    of, you said, 8.8 percent?
  


11                 MR. MACESIC:  No.  It's not larger
  


12    than plus 8.8 percent.
  


13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.
  


14    Not larger than 8.8 percent.  I appreciate your
  


15    working with the Department and our staff.
  


16                 MR. MACESIC:  Thank you.
  


17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  I'm going
  


18    to leave the record open until -- since there's
  


19    nobody here since 6:00, I'm only going to leave
  


20    the record open for another ten minutes.  We'll
  


21    come back, take a ten minute recess, come back.
  


22    If there's no one from the public here, we will
  


23    go ahead and close out the hearing.  I appreciate
  


24    everyone here that was here in attendance.
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 1                 Let me just ask Rhonda a quick
  


 2    question.  As far as procedural, I know you have
  


 3    it in the notes, but if you could tell me, are we
  


 4    leaving this open until Friday, the record?
  


 5                 MS. WEST:  Yeah.  What we'll do,
  


 6    because in case there was something now, we'll
  


 7    leave it open until Friday the 23rd, and then we
  


 8    close it out officially at that point.
  


 9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That's
  


10    Rhonda West, regulatory specialist for the
  


11    Department.  That's what we'll do.  Take a
  


12    ten-minute recess, and then we'll come back.  If
  


13    no one from the public is here at 20 of 7, we
  


14    will conclude the hearing tonight.
  


15                 (Briefly off the record)
  


16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.
  


17    We're back on the record.  It is now 20 minutes
  


18    to 7.  There are no members from the public
  


19    present, and as our regulatory specialist Rhonda
  


20    West stated, we will keep it open for any written
  


21    comments until this Friday at 4:30 p.m.
  


22                 MS. WEST:  We've not received any
  


23    yet.
  


24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Yeah.  I
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 1    think that's important for the record.  We
  


 2    haven't received any comments to date.  We
  


 3    appreciate the members of Allstate being here
  


 4    today, and we appreciate INS for giving their
  


 5    overview of the filing submission.
  


 6                 So, we will let the record reflect,
  


 7    again, no public attendance, and we are closing
  


 8    this public session as of now.  Thank you all for
  


 9    coming.
  


10                 (Hearing concluded at 6:40 p.m.)
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          1                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Good



          2     evening.  This is a public information session,



          3     Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company private



          4     passenger automobile rate filing.  It is Tuesday,



          5     March 20th, and we are going to start the public



          6     session, which will be from 6 to 8 p.m.



          7                  We will let the record reflect that



          8     at the present time, we have members from



          9     Allstate that are here, members from INS, members



         10     from the DOI, but we currently do not have any



         11     members from the public present at this meeting.



         12                  We will go through this



         13     presentation.  I will then leave the record open



         14     after the parties are finished for another 15



         15     minutes, so if someone from the public comes back



         16     in, we will ask the parties to briefly go through



         17     and summarize this again.  And we will close it



         18     out at 6:30, if no one from the public attends.



         19                  So, we're going to get started.



         20     Welcome to the Delaware Insurance Department's



         21     public information session regarding the Allstate



         22     Indemnity Insurance Company private passenger



         23     automobile rate filing.  My name is Gene Reed.



         24     I'm the Deputy Insurance Commissioner for the
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          1     Delaware Insurance Commissioner, Karen Weldin



          2     Stewart.  I will facilitate tonight's public



          3     information session.  Commissioner Stewart will



          4     make the ultimate decision to approve or



          5     disapprove this proposed rate filing.



          6                  Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company



          7     has filed a private passenger automobile rate



          8     filing pursuant to Delaware Code Title 18,



          9     Chapter 25, rates and rating organizations.



         10     Allstate indemnity requested an overall rate



         11     level change of 15 percent, with an indicated



         12     rate level change of plus 27 percent.



         13                  Allstate indemnity then submitted a



         14     revised indicated rate level change of plus 26.4



         15     percent.  After questions were asked and



         16     responded to by the Department and Allstate



         17     indemnity actuaries, Allstate intends to submit a



         18     filing amendment with revised detailed rate



         19     schedules for an proposed rate level change of



         20     plus 8.5 percent.



         21                  The purpose of this session is for



         22     the Department of Insurance to receive comments



         23     from the public to aid in reaching a decision on



         24     the proposed private passenger automobile rate
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          1     filing.



          2                  In reaching its decision, the



          3     Department will consider any comments presented



          4     here today, along with any comment submitted in



          5     writing.  The entire record concerning the



          6     proposed private passenger automobile rate



          7     filing, including the transcript of today's



          8     session, will be reviewed before any final



          9     conclusions are reached.



         10                  Today's session, as you can see, is



         11     being transcribed by a court reporter.  After the



         12     Department receives the typed transcript, the



         13     Department will make it available on its internet



         14     website at www.delawareinsurance.gov.  You may



         15     download a copy of the transcript from the



         16     Department's website at that time.



         17                  If you do not have internet access,



         18     you may view the transcript at the Department's



         19     offices in Dover and Wilmington, but please call



         20     to schedule an appointment before visiting the



         21     Department's offices.  You may also submit a



         22     request for copies of a particular document by



         23     fax or e-mail.



         24                  As explained earlier, the purpose of

                                                                  5







          1     today's session is to provide a public forum for



          2     anyone to give information or comments concerning



          3     the proposed Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company



          4     private passenger automobile rate filing.  Please



          5     address your comments to this topic only.  We ask



          6     that you please be as concise as possible, and



          7     limit your remarks to around 8 minutes.



          8                  If you are speaking, we ask that you



          9     include your name on a list of speakers that is



         10     available at the sign-in table.  I hope you have



         11     all signed up and have already indicated that you



         12     wish to speak.  If you have not done so, please



         13     do so now.



         14                  We also ask that you indicate if you



         15     are speaking on your own behalf or if you are



         16     speaking in any type of representative capacity.



         17     For example, if you are a policyholder of



         18     Allstate Indemnity.



         19                  Because of the informal nature of



         20     today's session, there will not be any sworn



         21     testimony.  Cross-examination and similar



         22     questioning of speakers or other representatives



         23     of the parties likewise will not be permitted.



         24                  However, you may pose factual
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          1     questions to the applicants during your oral



          2     comments.  Following today's session, the



          3     Department will require Allstate Indemnity



          4     Insurance Company to respond in writing to all



          5     questions raised by the Department and public



          6     during this session, and will make the responses



          7     available on our website.



          8                  Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company



          9     and the Insurance Department's actuary firm, INS



         10     Consultants, which reviewed the private passenger



         11     automobile rate filing, have each sent



         12     representatives to contribute to this public



         13     information session.



         14                  Ed Clark, Capital Region state



         15     manager, and Wasim Chowdhury, assistant actuary,



         16     are here on behalf of Allstate Indemnity, and



         17     Dave Macesic of INS Consultants, the Department's



         18     actuary for this matter, will be making



         19     introductory statements.



         20                  Their statements are intended to



         21     give an overview of the private passenger



         22     automobile rate filing as a preface to the public



         23     comments session.  Their statements will be



         24     recorded by the court reporter, and will be
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          1     posted on the Department's website.  The



          2     representatives from Allstate Indemnity will be



          3     speaking first.



          4                  MR. CLARK:  Good evening, ladies and



          5     gentlemen.  Thank you for joining us for the



          6     discussion of our current premium change request



          7     we have pending with the Delaware Department of



          8     Insurance.  My name is Ed Clark.  I'm the state



          9     manager for Allstate's Capital Region, which



         10     oversees our business operation for five states,



         11     including here in Delaware.



         12                  In my role as state manager, I am



         13     responsible for the product and pricing decisions



         14     that we have for the five-state region, as well



         15     as work with representatives across all of our



         16     regions, or across all of the states that we



         17     manage, to balance the cost of insurance while



         18     maintaining and making sure we have strong cash



         19     reserves, manage our expenses, as well as fulfill



         20     our claims paying responsibilities.



         21                  Our insurance, in our view, provides



         22     customers peace of mind.  It restores their lives



         23     in the event of an unfortunate event, and as well



         24     as replaces their assets, their loss due to a
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          1     claim that we cover.  This is a promise that we



          2     live and breathe every day as a company, as



          3     individuals that represent Allstate.  It's a



          4     promise that we intend to keep every day with our



          5     customers.



          6                  We understand, in today's economy,



          7     paying more for your insurance is not easy for



          8     anyone.  We also recognize we have a



          9     responsibility to our customers, our agents, our



         10     employees, as well as the shareholders of the



         11     Allstate Insurance Company, that we remain a



         12     safe, strong, and secure company.



         13                  We'd like to give you a little



         14     background on the recent premium change request



         15     that we have pending in regards to our Allstate



         16     Indemnity Company.  First slide.



         17                  Just to make sure customers



         18     understand, we have multiple auto companies here



         19     in Delaware.  There's various reasons why



         20     customers would be placed in one company versus



         21     another.  It may be when you came to Allstate.



         22     We've opened companies more recently, in the past



         23     10 to 12 years.



         24                  We have certain companies that only
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          1     have specific products available to customers.



          2     And as well as in this circumstance, higher risk



          3     drivers are placed in our Allstate Indemnity



          4     Company, as opposed to the Allstate Insurance



          5     Company or Allstate Property and Casualty



          6     Insurance Company.



          7                  Currently, the Allstate Indemnity



          8     Company insures 1238 policyholders.  That



          9     represents 3.4 percent of our overall policies in



         10     Delaware, and 4.8 percent of the overall



         11     households that we ensure.



         12                  Higher risk drivers, being defined



         13     as those drivers that either have multiple



         14     tickets and/or accidents, may have a major



         15     violation of some kind, either a driving under



         16     the influence, driving while impaired, reckless



         17     driving, et cetera, where they would not be



         18     eligible for our preferred or standard auto



         19     insurance company.  As well as those customers



         20     who came to Allstate without having prior



         21     insurance, making them ineligible for that



         22     standard insurance company, as well.



         23                  What we'd like to do is give you



         24     some information, as far as what has happened
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          1     with the cost of insurance, and that our premiums



          2     have not been able to keep up with that over



          3     recent years.  Wasim Chowdhury, who manages our



          4     actuarial staff, will provide additional



          5     information as to why that is, and where some of



          6     the additional costs are, as they've surfaced in



          7     recent years; what's causing that need for



          8     additional premium to keep up with the changing



          9     costs.



         10                  You can also see here, we did, as



         11     Mr. Reed acknowledged, had an original rate



         12     filing of a 15 percent average premium increase.



         13     We have worked with representatives from INS



         14     Consultants to arrive at a lower overall rate



         15     level, at 8 and a half percent.



         16                  To help customers understand where



         17     that is, from an average premium standpoint, our



         18     current average six-month premium for an auto



         19     policy in the Allstate Indemnity Company is $830.



         20     The average proposed increase at 8 and a half



         21     percent is $70.



         22                  A little bit of history on rate



         23     changes within this company.  The last time we



         24     adjusted rates on an overall level for the
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          1     company was in July of 2008, which was an overall



          2     decrease of 13.1 percent.  The last time we had



          3     any type of increase in overall premium within



          4     this company goes as far back as December of



          5     2002.



          6                  A couple of additional information



          7     in regards to that history.  In July of 2008, we



          8     introduced a new overall pricing plan for the



          9     Allstate Indemnity Company.  Although we had not



         10     raised premiums for several years, we had seen



         11     our business reduce or lose customers over time.



         12     We had not taken any substantial action in the



         13     market, but certainly, what we recognize is our



         14     competition was overall more attractive than



         15     Allstate was during the few years leading up to



         16     2008.



         17                  The overall pricing plan that we put



         18     in did exactly what we had hoped it to do.  We



         19     have been able to grow in the higher risk or



         20     non-standard auto business at a pretty



         21     substantial rate since this rate plan went in.



         22                  From 2008 through 2011, our overall



         23     customer base within this company has tripled.



         24     So the 1238 policyholders at a current count
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          1     represents three times the level of customers



          2     prior to this rating plan being introduced.



          3                  That rate of growth in our industry,



          4     and certainly for our company, can come with some



          5     risk.  It appears, at least to us, the rate of



          6     growth put additional profitability pressures on



          7     us.  Wasim is going to share some of the



          8     information as to where that additional rate



          9     pressure is coming from.  We believe this



         10     compromised rate agreement at 8 and a half



         11     percent puts us in a position to be much more in



         12     line with what the competition offers for an



         13     overall rate within the higher risk driver



         14     market.



         15                  We want to assure all of our



         16     customers, they will not go through this rate



         17     change alone.  Our local Delaware Allstate



         18     agencies will be fully prepared as to how much a



         19     customer's premium is going up, the reasons



         20     behind the rate change, as well as the tools and



         21     resources they need to help customers to make



         22     their insurance more affordable.



         23                  There are a number of different



         24     product features, discounts that are available.
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          1     Wasim is going to take you through, the group



          2     through some of the discounts that are available,



          3     and discount opportunities that would enable



          4     customers to save money, if affordability became



          5     an issue with this recent rate increase, or our



          6     upcoming rate increase.



          7                  Our agencies are encouraged, and we



          8     certainly, you know, educate and help them



          9     understand the benefit of a customer renewal



         10     assessment, or a personal policy protection



         11     review, helping customers with both making sure



         12     the policy meets their coverage needs, as well as



         13     affordability, in the event that the premium is



         14     beyond, you know, their ability, or compromises



         15     their ability to pay for their insurance.



         16                  Allstate has multiple distribution



         17     support beyond just the local agency.  We're



         18     available 24/7 through 1-800-Allstate, as well as



         19     through the web, through Allstate.com.  So



         20     customers can get service for their policy



         21     through multiple means, any time of the day they



         22     wish to.



         23                  Our renewal notice goes out 40 days



         24     in advance or their renewal, providing customers
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          1     the opportunity to review their policy, make any



          2     necessary changes, again, around the



          3     affordability.  As well as if some customers, you



          4     know, want to review whether the competition or



          5     other companies may have an opportunity to help



          6     them save money or have a policy that better



          7     suits their needs.



          8                  We have worked very closely with the



          9     Commissioner, her staff, as well as INS



         10     Consultants, in regards to this compromise change



         11     of 8 and a half percent.  We're comfortable it



         12     helps us get our overall premium level more



         13     adequate, while also recognizing that it helps



         14     our customers from an affordability standpoint to



         15     remain within the Allstate Indemnity Company.



         16                  Allstate has a long and proud



         17     tradition of serving customers and businesses in



         18     the state of Delaware.  We insure over 27,600



         19     autos, 19,200 homes in the state.  In 2010, the



         20     most recent year that our claims data has been



         21     available to us, we paid over $22.8 million in



         22     claims.  We've invested over 10.8 million in



         23     business-to-business spending, and invested



         24     nearly $460 million in municipal bonds.
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          1                  We've paid $1.4 million in State



          2     taxes, and in Delaware, the Allstate Foundation



          3     has provided 26,000 in support of nonprofits to



          4     service the state.



          5                  So, in closing, we are absolutely



          6     committed to our customers and small business



          7     owners, the local Allstate agency.  On behalf of



          8     the corporation, we want to thank all of our



          9     customers for the opportunity to service their



         10     business needs, and anyone who had the



         11     opportunity to come this evening, to hear more



         12     information about the rate change that we have



         13     currently pending with the state.



         14                  And now at this time, I'd like to



         15     turn the information over to Wasim Chowdhury, who



         16     is going to take you more in depth regarding the



         17     specific change that we have with the state.



         18                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.  Thanks for



         19     the overview, Ed.  As Ed mentioned, my name is



         20     Wasim Chowdhury, and my team manages the rates



         21     for Allstate Indemnity in the state of Delaware.



         22                  I'd like to begin by providing a



         23     brief overview about the process we followed to



         24     understand if we need to adjustment premiums.
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          1                  So in general, our goal is to ensure



          2     that the premium we charge in Allstate's



          3     Indemnity Company across Delaware is sufficient



          4     to cover all of our losses and expenses,



          5     including the claim payouts to our customers.  We



          6     carefully examine historical information to



          7     predict our future inflows, which you can



          8     consider premium, and future outflows, which you



          9     can consider our claims and expenses.



         10                  In the state of Delaware's indemnity



         11     book of business, data shows that our future



         12     outflow are expected to be greater than the



         13     premium we expect to collect, which is why we



         14     have proposed a rate change.



         15                  As Ed also noted, our losses have



         16     considerably increased over the past few years as



         17     our business has increased.  I'd like to direct



         18     your attention to slide 3, which clearly



         19     demonstrates that as our business has increased,



         20     so have our losses and expenses relative to



         21     premium.  Compared to 2008, our losses and



         22     expenses have increased approximately 25 to 30



         23     percent in comparison to the premium we're



         24     receiving.  This analysis indicated we needed to
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          1     adjust rates to keep up with our expenses and



          2     claims.



          3                  The next question we needed to



          4     answer was how do we adjust individual rates to



          5     arrive at the proper average premium that



          6     balances our inflows and our outflows.



          7                  As you know, different customers



          8     have different expected losses.  For example, an



          9     inexperienced 16-year-old driver is expected to



         10     have higher losses than a 35-year-old driver with



         11     many years of driving experience.



         12                  My team did additional analysis to



         13     determine which groups of drivers needed to be



         14     adjusted to better reflect their expected loss.



         15     Based on our analysis, we found that the single



         16     vehicle, non-homeowner, liability-coverage-only



         17     customers necessitated an increase higher than



         18     average, to match their higher expected loss.



         19                  On the other hand, the multi-car



         20     homeowners with full coverage will see a lower



         21     than average increase with this change, because



         22     of their lower expected costs.



         23                  About 20 percent of our business



         24     will actually see a decrease with the premium
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          1     change, while about 27 percent will see an



          2     increase greater than 20 percent due to the



          3     higher expected losses.



          4                  We understand that increasing rates



          5     on customers can be challenging, but Allstate



          6     provides many Discount options to help customers



          7     lower their costs.



          8                  On slide 4, you can see all of the



          9     available discounts Allstate offers to its



         10     customers.  On slide 5, I've highlighted a few of



         11     them specifically that customers can consider as



         12     options to lower their rates.



         13                  The Allstate easy pay plan discount



         14     applies when the policy is paid through the



         15     Allstate easy pay plan, which means automatic



         16     withdrawal from one's checking account.



         17                  Next, the homeownership discount



         18     applies when the named insured and/or spouse owns



         19     a home, townhome, condominium, or mobile home.



         20                  Next, the defensive driver discount



         21     applies when an operator receives a certificate



         22     certifying voluntary attendance and successful



         23     completion of an accident prevention course or



         24     motorcycle rider course approved by the Insurance
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          1     Commissioner.



          2                  I want to reiterate that the premium



          3     changes are taken very, very seriously by



          4     Allstate, and we fully understand the impact of



          5     these changes on our customers.  It's equally



          6     important to understand that we must carefully



          7     balance our premium inflows with our expected



          8     costs, to ensure that we make good on our promise



          9     to our customers.



         10                  Thank you for your time this



         11     evening, and I will hand the floor back to Ed.



         12                  MR. CLARK:  Actually, that's our



         13     closing for now.  Again, we appreciate



         14     everyone's, you know, hearing the information in



         15     regards to our situation with the current



         16     company.  We appreciate the opportunity to share



         17     our experience, and certainly value our



         18     customers' continued support and appreciation of,



         19     you know, doing business with Allstate.  Thank



         20     you.



         21                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Thank you



         22     for your comments.  Before we go to INS, I do



         23     have a couple of questions.  I'm not an actuary,



         24     so can you -- you said -- and maybe I heard you
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          1     wrong.  You said premium enclosed premium



          2     outflow?



          3                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Premium inflows and



          4     outflows.



          5                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Oh,



          6     inflow.



          7                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Yes.  The premium



          8     collected is inflow to the company.



          9                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Got you.



         10     Just wanted to make sure I understood you.  The



         11     other question I have is the premium swing.  When



         12     I looked at the graph that you had provided on



         13     the file, you had -- you said roughly 20 percent



         14     of the people will get 20 percent or more?



         15                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  27 percent of the



         16     customers will see an increase greater than 20



         17     percent.



         18                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Greater



         19     than 20 percent.  Overall, when I looked at that,



         20     it appeared that 39 percent of the policyholder



         21     base would see at least 10 percent, or a double



         22     digit increase or greater.



         23                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.



         24                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  You also
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          1     have that on the other side of the pendulum, the



          2     swing of the decreases, as well.  When I looked



          3     at the 10 percent, let's say the 10 percent to 20



          4     percent.  Those that are getting 20 percent or



          5     more are considered very high risk?  They're the



          6     ones getting that increase?  Or is it coming in



          7     those zip codes, or in those areas?



          8                  I'm trying to establish like the --



          9     to me, when I looked at that, it appeared that



         10     I'm getting a 10 percent increase even if I'm one



         11     of your good substandard drivers -- if there's



         12     such a thing as a good substandard driver -- but



         13     I'm getting a 10 percent increase because I'm in



         14     this zip code.



         15                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.



         16                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Or I'm in



         17     this area, maybe where you have more higher



         18     claims or something.  Can you explain that?



         19                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Sure.  So we are



         20     touching and updating the rates for multiple



         21     rating plans.  And a rating plan is essentially



         22     one piece that goes into determining your final



         23     rate.  So different factors that go into



         24     determining your rate are your age, where you
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          1     live, your accident history, violation history.



          2     So there are multiple factors that ultimately



          3     determine the final rate.



          4                  We are updating the rates for many



          5     of those rating plans.  Territory is actually one



          6     rating plan that we are not updating.  So all



          7     else equal, two customers in different



          8     territories should not see a different rate



          9     change.  Assuming all else equal.  Same exact



         10     risk profile, one maybe in Wilmington, one maybe



         11     in Dover.  But as long as they are the same exact



         12     risk otherwise, there should not be a difference



         13     in rate.



         14                  However, I did mention that we are



         15     updating the factors for other characteristics.



         16     And so, you do have that swing, since there are



         17     many factors that are being updated, to the



         18     extent that you're a customer that is getting the



         19     increase due to multiple factors, you're going to



         20     be on the higher end of the histogram on the rate



         21     change distribution.



         22                  So on average, it seems that the



         23     single vehicle, the ones who do not own a home,



         24     and only have liability coverage, so your bodily
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          1     injury, property damage, personal injury



          2     protection, and uninsured motorist coverage,



          3     they're the ones who are on the higher end of



          4     that distribution.



          5                  And then on the flip side, the rates



          6     compared to average have gone down for the



          7     customers who have multiple cars, who own a home,



          8     and have more than just the liability coverage,



          9     which includes collision coverage and



         10     comprehensive coverage.



         11                  So, multiple factors ultimately



         12     result in the final rate.  We are touching



         13     multiple factors.  And it just depends on your



         14     characteristics, and if you happen to, for each



         15     characteristic, be on the end where the rates are



         16     increasing, when you put that all together,



         17     you're going to see the larger than average



         18     increase.



         19                  But again, on the flip side, if



         20     you're a customer that is on the better side of



         21     each characteristic that we're updating, then



         22     you'll see --



         23                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  A



         24     decrease?
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          1                  MR. CLARK:  And the way we view



          2     that, Gene, from a business perspective, is by



          3     getting to the most accurate rate even at an



          4     individual customer group around the



          5     characteristics that Wasim described.  That way,



          6     the customers whose performance is better than



          7     their current rate, that they have an opportunity



          8     to save money, or potentially pay less than the



          9     average rate that they have.



         10                  If we -- if our pursuit is to try to



         11     minimize the overall experience within the book,



         12     we would try to center more of the, you know,



         13     overall rate change around the -- you know, the



         14     eight and a half percent within this change that



         15     we're making here.



         16                  We think that's, you know, not in



         17     the best interests of a good percentage of our



         18     overall customer group.  And that would be a



         19     group that we would hope to have the opportunity



         20     to retain, as well as, you know, grow within this



         21     book of business.  We certainly want to grow in



         22     the other segments, but not at the current rate



         23     level that we charge.  We need a more adequate



         24     premium to be able to do it.  And that's what
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          1     creates what we refer to as spread within the



          2     overall rate level.



          3                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.



          4     Thank you.  One last question.  Credit score, as



          5     you know, is used for new policyholders, not



          6     existing policyholders, under Delaware law.  If



          7     someone were to come to Allstate and had a very



          8     clean record, but had a very poor credit score



          9     rating, would they go to the substandard company,



         10     or could they also be written in the -- the



         11     better, or however --



         12                  MR. CLARK:  Yeah.  We do not have



         13     any underwriting guideline in regards to your



         14     credit score here in Delaware.  So a customer for



         15     all other perspective qualifies for the



         16     Allstate -- today it's the Allstate Property and



         17     Casualty Company, which is our standard auto



         18     company, they would not be in any way restricted



         19     or required to pay more, or be placed in a higher



         20     risk auto company.



         21                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.



         22                  MR. CLARK:  We don't have any



         23     guidelines, and we believe that's in accordance



         24     with what we'd be asked to do here in the state.
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          1                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Very



          2     good.  Thank you.  INS.



          3                  MR. MACESIC:  Okay.  INS



          4     Consultants, Inc., has been retained by the



          5     Delaware Department of Insurance to conduct an



          6     independent actuarial review of Allstate



          7     Indemnity Company's private passenger automobile



          8     rate filing that was submitted on November 14th,



          9     2011.



         10                  The scope includes a review of the



         11     filings submitted by Allstate Indemnity, an



         12     evaluation of the key assumptions contained in



         13     the company's rate level analysis, and the



         14     independent development of an indicated rate



         15     level change.



         16                  The rate filing was submitted by



         17     Rick Wisniewski, associate state filings director



         18     of Allstate Indemnity.  This review was conducted



         19     by David J. Macesic, ACAS, MAAA, and key elements



         20     of this review were peer reviewed by Robert W.



         21     Gardner, FCAS, MAAA.



         22                  INS has reviewed this submission in



         23     its entirety, along with other filing material



         24     requested of and received from Allstate
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          1     Indemnity.  The rate filing requested an overall



          2     rate level change of plus 15.0 percent.



          3                  INS finds that the proposed rate



          4     level change of plus 15.0 percent is not



          5     substantiated by the materials received from the



          6     company.  INS finds that a proposed rate level



          7     change in an amount no larger than plus 8.8



          8     percent is substantiated by the filing material



          9     received.



         10                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Is that



         11     your report?



         12                  MR. MACESIC:  That's it.



         13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That was



         14     pretty quick, Mr. Macesic.  Good report.  Are



         15     there any questions from Allstate on that report?



         16                  MR. CLARK:  No, sir.



         17                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  There's



         18     no one here from the public, so I will ask a few



         19     questions.  Can you please tell me what an ACAS



         20     and an MAAA and an FCAS are?



         21                  MR. MACESIC:  Associate of the



         22     Casualty Actuarial Society, versus a Fellow of



         23     the Casualty Actuarial Society.  And MAAA is a



         24     Member of the American Academy of Actuaries,
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          1     which means we are accredited actuaries.



          2                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.



          3     All right.  I don't have any questions on your



          4     report.  You did a great job working with our



          5     rate analyst and rate assistant director.  I



          6     appreciate you doing that, and working with the



          7     Commissioner on this file, and also working with



          8     the Allstate actuary so that we could come to a



          9     change in the overall indicated rate level amount



         10     of, you said, 8.8 percent?



         11                  MR. MACESIC:  No.  It's not larger



         12     than plus 8.8 percent.



         13                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.



         14     Not larger than 8.8 percent.  I appreciate your



         15     working with the Department and our staff.



         16                  MR. MACESIC:  Thank you.



         17                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  I'm going



         18     to leave the record open until -- since there's



         19     nobody here since 6:00, I'm only going to leave



         20     the record open for another ten minutes.  We'll



         21     come back, take a ten minute recess, come back.



         22     If there's no one from the public here, we will



         23     go ahead and close out the hearing.  I appreciate



         24     everyone here that was here in attendance.
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          1                  Let me just ask Rhonda a quick



          2     question.  As far as procedural, I know you have



          3     it in the notes, but if you could tell me, are we



          4     leaving this open until Friday, the record?



          5                  MS. WEST:  Yeah.  What we'll do,



          6     because in case there was something now, we'll



          7     leave it open until Friday the 23rd, and then we



          8     close it out officially at that point.



          9                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That's



         10     Rhonda West, regulatory specialist for the



         11     Department.  That's what we'll do.  Take a



         12     ten-minute recess, and then we'll come back.  If



         13     no one from the public is here at 20 of 7, we



         14     will conclude the hearing tonight.



         15                  (Briefly off the record)



         16                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.



         17     We're back on the record.  It is now 20 minutes



         18     to 7.  There are no members from the public



         19     present, and as our regulatory specialist Rhonda



         20     West stated, we will keep it open for any written



         21     comments until this Friday at 4:30 p.m.



         22                  MS. WEST:  We've not received any



         23     yet.



         24                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Yeah.  I
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          1     think that's important for the record.  We



          2     haven't received any comments to date.  We



          3     appreciate the members of Allstate being here



          4     today, and we appreciate INS for giving their



          5     overview of the filing submission.



          6                  So, we will let the record reflect,



          7     again, no public attendance, and we are closing



          8     this public session as of now.  Thank you all for



          9     coming.



         10                  (Hearing concluded at 6:40 p.m.)
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35=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Good

36=     evening.  This is a public information session,

37=     Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company private

38=     passenger automobile rate filing.  It is Tuesday,

39=     March 20th, and we are going to start the public

40=     session, which will be from 6 to 8 p.m.

41=                  We will let the record reflect that

42=     at the present time, we have members from

43=     Allstate that are here, members from INS, members

44=     from the DOI, but we currently do not have any

45=     members from the public present at this meeting.

46=                  We will go through this

47=     presentation.  I will then leave the record open

48=     after the parties are finished for another 15

49=     minutes, so if someone from the public comes back

50=     in, we will ask the parties to briefly go through

51=     and summarize this again.  And we will close it

52=     out at 6:30, if no one from the public attends.

53=                  So, we're going to get started.

54=     Welcome to the Delaware Insurance Department's

55=     public information session regarding the Allstate

56=     Indemnity Insurance Company private passenger

57=     automobile rate filing.  My name is Gene Reed.

58=     I'm the Deputy Insurance Commissioner for the

fmt=pb

59=     Delaware Insurance Commissioner, Karen Weldin

60=     Stewart.  I will facilitate tonight's public

61=     information session.  Commissioner Stewart will

62=     make the ultimate decision to approve or

63=     disapprove this proposed rate filing.

64=                  Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company

65=     has filed a private passenger automobile rate

66=     filing pursuant to Delaware Code Title 18,

67=     Chapter 25, rates and rating organizations.

68=     Allstate indemnity requested an overall rate

69=     level change of 15 percent, with an indicated

70=     rate level change of plus 27 percent.

71=                  Allstate indemnity then submitted a

72=     revised indicated rate level change of plus 26.4

73=     percent.  After questions were asked and

74=     responded to by the Department and Allstate

75=     indemnity actuaries, Allstate intends to submit a

76=     filing amendment with revised detailed rate

77=     schedules for an proposed rate level change of

78=     plus 8.5 percent.

79=                  The purpose of this session is for

80=     the Department of Insurance to receive comments

81=     from the public to aid in reaching a decision on

82=     the proposed private passenger automobile rate
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83=     filing.

84=                  In reaching its decision, the

85=     Department will consider any comments presented

86=     here today, along with any comment submitted in

87=     writing.  The entire record concerning the

88=     proposed private passenger automobile rate

89=     filing, including the transcript of today's

90=     session, will be reviewed before any final

91=     conclusions are reached.

92=                  Today's session, as you can see, is

93=     being transcribed by a court reporter.  After the

94=     Department receives the typed transcript, the

95=     Department will make it available on its internet

96=     website at www.delawareinsurance.gov.  You may

97=     download a copy of the transcript from the

98=     Department's website at that time.

99=                  If you do not have internet access,

100=     you may view the transcript at the Department's

101=     offices in Dover and Wilmington, but please call

102=     to schedule an appointment before visiting the

103=     Department's offices.  You may also submit a

104=     request for copies of a particular document by

105=     fax or e-mail.

106=                  As explained earlier, the purpose of
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107=     today's session is to provide a public forum for

108=     anyone to give information or comments concerning

109=     the proposed Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company

110=     private passenger automobile rate filing.  Please

111=     address your comments to this topic only.  We ask

112=     that you please be as concise as possible, and

113=     limit your remarks to around 8 minutes.

114=                  If you are speaking, we ask that you

115=     include your name on a list of speakers that is

116=     available at the sign-in table.  I hope you have

117=     all signed up and have already indicated that you

118=     wish to speak.  If you have not done so, please

119=     do so now.

120=                  We also ask that you indicate if you

121=     are speaking on your own behalf or if you are

122=     speaking in any type of representative capacity.

123=     For example, if you are a policyholder of

124=     Allstate Indemnity.

125=                  Because of the informal nature of

126=     today's session, there will not be any sworn

127=     testimony.  Cross-examination and similar

128=     questioning of speakers or other representatives

129=     of the parties likewise will not be permitted.

130=                  However, you may pose factual
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131=     questions to the applicants during your oral

132=     comments.  Following today's session, the

133=     Department will require Allstate Indemnity

134=     Insurance Company to respond in writing to all

135=     questions raised by the Department and public

136=     during this session, and will make the responses

137=     available on our website.

138=                  Allstate Indemnity Insurance Company

139=     and the Insurance Department's actuary firm, INS

140=     Consultants, which reviewed the private passenger

141=     automobile rate filing, have each sent

142=     representatives to contribute to this public

143=     information session.

144=                  Ed Clark, Capital Region state

145=     manager, and Wasim Chowdhury, assistant actuary,

146=     are here on behalf of Allstate Indemnity, and

147=     Dave Macesic of INS Consultants, the Department's

148=     actuary for this matter, will be making

149=     introductory statements.

150=                  Their statements are intended to

151=     give an overview of the private passenger

152=     automobile rate filing as a preface to the public

153=     comments session.  Their statements will be

154=     recorded by the court reporter, and will be
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155=     posted on the Department's website.  The

156=     representatives from Allstate Indemnity will be

157=     speaking first.

158=                  MR. CLARK:  Good evening, ladies and

159=     gentlemen.  Thank you for joining us for the

160=     discussion of our current premium change request

161=     we have pending with the Delaware Department of

162=     Insurance.  My name is Ed Clark.  I'm the state

163=     manager for Allstate's Capital Region, which

164=     oversees our business operation for five states,

165=     including here in Delaware.

166=                  In my role as state manager, I am

167=     responsible for the product and pricing decisions

168=     that we have for the five-state region, as well

169=     as work with representatives across all of our

170=     regions, or across all of the states that we

171=     manage, to balance the cost of insurance while

172=     maintaining and making sure we have strong cash

173=     reserves, manage our expenses, as well as fulfill

174=     our claims paying responsibilities.

175=                  Our insurance, in our view, provides

176=     customers peace of mind.  It restores their lives

177=     in the event of an unfortunate event, and as well

178=     as replaces their assets, their loss due to a
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179=     claim that we cover.  This is a promise that we

180=     live and breathe every day as a company, as

181=     individuals that represent Allstate.  It's a

182=     promise that we intend to keep every day with our

183=     customers.

184=                  We understand, in today's economy,

185=     paying more for your insurance is not easy for

186=     anyone.  We also recognize we have a

187=     responsibility to our customers, our agents, our

188=     employees, as well as the shareholders of the

189=     Allstate Insurance Company, that we remain a

190=     safe, strong, and secure company.

191=                  We'd like to give you a little

192=     background on the recent premium change request

193=     that we have pending in regards to our Allstate

194=     Indemnity Company.  First slide.

195=                  Just to make sure customers

196=     understand, we have multiple auto companies here

197=     in Delaware.  There's various reasons why

198=     customers would be placed in one company versus

199=     another.  It may be when you came to Allstate.

200=     We've opened companies more recently, in the past

201=     10 to 12 years.

202=                  We have certain companies that only
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203=     have specific products available to customers.

204=     And as well as in this circumstance, higher risk

205=     drivers are placed in our Allstate Indemnity

206=     Company, as opposed to the Allstate Insurance

207=     Company or Allstate Property and Casualty

208=     Insurance Company.

209=                  Currently, the Allstate Indemnity

210=     Company insures 1238 policyholders.  That

211=     represents 3.4 percent of our overall policies in

212=     Delaware, and 4.8 percent of the overall

213=     households that we ensure.

214=                  Higher risk drivers, being defined

215=     as those drivers that either have multiple

216=     tickets and/or accidents, may have a major

217=     violation of some kind, either a driving under

218=     the influence, driving while impaired, reckless

219=     driving, et cetera, where they would not be

220=     eligible for our preferred or standard auto

221=     insurance company.  As well as those customers

222=     who came to Allstate without having prior

223=     insurance, making them ineligible for that

224=     standard insurance company, as well.

225=                  What we'd like to do is give you

226=     some information, as far as what has happened
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227=     with the cost of insurance, and that our premiums

228=     have not been able to keep up with that over

229=     recent years.  Wasim Chowdhury, who manages our

230=     actuarial staff, will provide additional

231=     information as to why that is, and where some of

232=     the additional costs are, as they've surfaced in

233=     recent years; what's causing that need for

234=     additional premium to keep up with the changing

235=     costs.

236=                  You can also see here, we did, as

237=     Mr. Reed acknowledged, had an original rate

238=     filing of a 15 percent average premium increase.

239=     We have worked with representatives from INS

240=     Consultants to arrive at a lower overall rate

241=     level, at 8 and a half percent.

242=                  To help customers understand where

243=     that is, from an average premium standpoint, our

244=     current average six-month premium for an auto

245=     policy in the Allstate Indemnity Company is $830.

246=     The average proposed increase at 8 and a half

247=     percent is $70.

248=                  A little bit of history on rate

249=     changes within this company.  The last time we

250=     adjusted rates on an overall level for the
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251=     company was in July of 2008, which was an overall

252=     decrease of 13.1 percent.  The last time we had

253=     any type of increase in overall premium within

254=     this company goes as far back as December of

255=     2002.

256=                  A couple of additional information

257=     in regards to that history.  In July of 2008, we

258=     introduced a new overall pricing plan for the

259=     Allstate Indemnity Company.  Although we had not

260=     raised premiums for several years, we had seen

261=     our business reduce or lose customers over time.

262=     We had not taken any substantial action in the

263=     market, but certainly, what we recognize is our

264=     competition was overall more attractive than

265=     Allstate was during the few years leading up to

266=     2008.

267=                  The overall pricing plan that we put

268=     in did exactly what we had hoped it to do.  We

269=     have been able to grow in the higher risk or

270=     non-standard auto business at a pretty

271=     substantial rate since this rate plan went in.

272=                  From 2008 through 2011, our overall

273=     customer base within this company has tripled.

274=     So the 1238 policyholders at a current count
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275=     represents three times the level of customers

276=     prior to this rating plan being introduced.

277=                  That rate of growth in our industry,

278=     and certainly for our company, can come with some

279=     risk.  It appears, at least to us, the rate of

280=     growth put additional profitability pressures on

281=     us.  Wasim is going to share some of the

282=     information as to where that additional rate

283=     pressure is coming from.  We believe this

284=     compromised rate agreement at 8 and a half

285=     percent puts us in a position to be much more in

286=     line with what the competition offers for an

287=     overall rate within the higher risk driver

288=     market.

289=                  We want to assure all of our

290=     customers, they will not go through this rate

291=     change alone.  Our local Delaware Allstate

292=     agencies will be fully prepared as to how much a

293=     customer's premium is going up, the reasons

294=     behind the rate change, as well as the tools and

295=     resources they need to help customers to make

296=     their insurance more affordable.

297=                  There are a number of different

298=     product features, discounts that are available.
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299=     Wasim is going to take you through, the group

300=     through some of the discounts that are available,

301=     and discount opportunities that would enable

302=     customers to save money, if affordability became

303=     an issue with this recent rate increase, or our

304=     upcoming rate increase.

305=                  Our agencies are encouraged, and we

306=     certainly, you know, educate and help them

307=     understand the benefit of a customer renewal

308=     assessment, or a personal policy protection

309=     review, helping customers with both making sure

310=     the policy meets their coverage needs, as well as

311=     affordability, in the event that the premium is

312=     beyond, you know, their ability, or compromises

313=     their ability to pay for their insurance.

314=                  Allstate has multiple distribution

315=     support beyond just the local agency.  We're

316=     available 24/7 through 1-800-Allstate, as well as

317=     through the web, through Allstate.com.  So

318=     customers can get service for their policy

319=     through multiple means, any time of the day they

320=     wish to.

321=                  Our renewal notice goes out 40 days

322=     in advance or their renewal, providing customers
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323=     the opportunity to review their policy, make any

324=     necessary changes, again, around the

325=     affordability.  As well as if some customers, you

326=     know, want to review whether the competition or

327=     other companies may have an opportunity to help

328=     them save money or have a policy that better

329=     suits their needs.

330=                  We have worked very closely with the

331=     Commissioner, her staff, as well as INS

332=     Consultants, in regards to this compromise change

333=     of 8 and a half percent.  We're comfortable it

334=     helps us get our overall premium level more

335=     adequate, while also recognizing that it helps

336=     our customers from an affordability standpoint to

337=     remain within the Allstate Indemnity Company.

338=                  Allstate has a long and proud

339=     tradition of serving customers and businesses in

340=     the state of Delaware.  We insure over 27,600

341=     autos, 19,200 homes in the state.  In 2010, the

342=     most recent year that our claims data has been

343=     available to us, we paid over $22.8 million in

344=     claims.  We've invested over 10.8 million in

345=     business-to-business spending, and invested

346=     nearly $460 million in municipal bonds.
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347=                  We've paid $1.4 million in State

348=     taxes, and in Delaware, the Allstate Foundation

349=     has provided 26,000 in support of nonprofits to

350=     service the state.

351=                  So, in closing, we are absolutely

352=     committed to our customers and small business

353=     owners, the local Allstate agency.  On behalf of

354=     the corporation, we want to thank all of our

355=     customers for the opportunity to service their

356=     business needs, and anyone who had the

357=     opportunity to come this evening, to hear more

358=     information about the rate change that we have

359=     currently pending with the state.

360=                  And now at this time, I'd like to

361=     turn the information over to Wasim Chowdhury, who

362=     is going to take you more in depth regarding the

363=     specific change that we have with the state.

364=                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.  Thanks for

365=     the overview, Ed.  As Ed mentioned, my name is

366=     Wasim Chowdhury, and my team manages the rates

367=     for Allstate Indemnity in the state of Delaware.

368=                  I'd like to begin by providing a

369=     brief overview about the process we followed to

370=     understand if we need to adjustment premiums.
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371=                  So in general, our goal is to ensure

372=     that the premium we charge in Allstate's

373=     Indemnity Company across Delaware is sufficient

374=     to cover all of our losses and expenses,

375=     including the claim payouts to our customers.  We

376=     carefully examine historical information to

377=     predict our future inflows, which you can

378=     consider premium, and future outflows, which you

379=     can consider our claims and expenses.

380=                  In the state of Delaware's indemnity

381=     book of business, data shows that our future

382=     outflow are expected to be greater than the

383=     premium we expect to collect, which is why we

384=     have proposed a rate change.

385=                  As Ed also noted, our losses have

386=     considerably increased over the past few years as

387=     our business has increased.  I'd like to direct

388=     your attention to slide 3, which clearly

389=     demonstrates that as our business has increased,

390=     so have our losses and expenses relative to

391=     premium.  Compared to 2008, our losses and

392=     expenses have increased approximately 25 to 30

393=     percent in comparison to the premium we're

394=     receiving.  This analysis indicated we needed to
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395=     adjust rates to keep up with our expenses and

396=     claims.

397=                  The next question we needed to

398=     answer was how do we adjust individual rates to

399=     arrive at the proper average premium that

400=     balances our inflows and our outflows.

401=                  As you know, different customers

402=     have different expected losses.  For example, an

403=     inexperienced 16-year-old driver is expected to

404=     have higher losses than a 35-year-old driver with

405=     many years of driving experience.

406=                  My team did additional analysis to

407=     determine which groups of drivers needed to be

408=     adjusted to better reflect their expected loss.

409=     Based on our analysis, we found that the single

410=     vehicle, non-homeowner, liability-coverage-only

411=     customers necessitated an increase higher than

412=     average, to match their higher expected loss.

413=                  On the other hand, the multi-car

414=     homeowners with full coverage will see a lower

415=     than average increase with this change, because

416=     of their lower expected costs.

417=                  About 20 percent of our business

418=     will actually see a decrease with the premium
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419=     change, while about 27 percent will see an

420=     increase greater than 20 percent due to the

421=     higher expected losses.

422=                  We understand that increasing rates

423=     on customers can be challenging, but Allstate

424=     provides many Discount options to help customers

425=     lower their costs.

426=                  On slide 4, you can see all of the

427=     available discounts Allstate offers to its

428=     customers.  On slide 5, I've highlighted a few of

429=     them specifically that customers can consider as

430=     options to lower their rates.

431=                  The Allstate easy pay plan discount

432=     applies when the policy is paid through the

433=     Allstate easy pay plan, which means automatic

434=     withdrawal from one's checking account.

435=                  Next, the homeownership discount

436=     applies when the named insured and/or spouse owns

437=     a home, townhome, condominium, or mobile home.

438=                  Next, the defensive driver discount

439=     applies when an operator receives a certificate

440=     certifying voluntary attendance and successful

441=     completion of an accident prevention course or

442=     motorcycle rider course approved by the Insurance
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443=     Commissioner.

444=                  I want to reiterate that the premium

445=     changes are taken very, very seriously by

446=     Allstate, and we fully understand the impact of

447=     these changes on our customers.  It's equally

448=     important to understand that we must carefully

449=     balance our premium inflows with our expected

450=     costs, to ensure that we make good on our promise

451=     to our customers.

452=                  Thank you for your time this

453=     evening, and I will hand the floor back to Ed.

454=                  MR. CLARK:  Actually, that's our

455=     closing for now.  Again, we appreciate

456=     everyone's, you know, hearing the information in

457=     regards to our situation with the current

458=     company.  We appreciate the opportunity to share

459=     our experience, and certainly value our

460=     customers' continued support and appreciation of,

461=     you know, doing business with Allstate.  Thank

462=     you.

463=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Thank you

464=     for your comments.  Before we go to INS, I do

465=     have a couple of questions.  I'm not an actuary,

466=     so can you -- you said -- and maybe I heard you
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467=     wrong.  You said premium enclosed premium

468=     outflow?

469=                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Premium inflows and

470=     outflows.

471=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Oh,

472=     inflow.

473=                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Yes.  The premium

474=     collected is inflow to the company.

475=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Got you.

476=     Just wanted to make sure I understood you.  The

477=     other question I have is the premium swing.  When

478=     I looked at the graph that you had provided on

479=     the file, you had -- you said roughly 20 percent

480=     of the people will get 20 percent or more?

481=                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  27 percent of the

482=     customers will see an increase greater than 20

483=     percent.

484=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Greater

485=     than 20 percent.  Overall, when I looked at that,

486=     it appeared that 39 percent of the policyholder

487=     base would see at least 10 percent, or a double

488=     digit increase or greater.

489=                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.

490=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  You also
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491=     have that on the other side of the pendulum, the

492=     swing of the decreases, as well.  When I looked

493=     at the 10 percent, let's say the 10 percent to 20

494=     percent.  Those that are getting 20 percent or

495=     more are considered very high risk?  They're the

496=     ones getting that increase?  Or is it coming in

497=     those zip codes, or in those areas?

498=                  I'm trying to establish like the --

499=     to me, when I looked at that, it appeared that

500=     I'm getting a 10 percent increase even if I'm one

501=     of your good substandard drivers -- if there's

502=     such a thing as a good substandard driver -- but

503=     I'm getting a 10 percent increase because I'm in

504=     this zip code.

505=                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Okay.

506=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Or I'm in

507=     this area, maybe where you have more higher

508=     claims or something.  Can you explain that?

509=                  MR. CHOWDHURY:  Sure.  So we are

510=     touching and updating the rates for multiple

511=     rating plans.  And a rating plan is essentially

512=     one piece that goes into determining your final

513=     rate.  So different factors that go into

514=     determining your rate are your age, where you
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515=     live, your accident history, violation history.

516=     So there are multiple factors that ultimately

517=     determine the final rate.

518=                  We are updating the rates for many

519=     of those rating plans.  Territory is actually one

520=     rating plan that we are not updating.  So all

521=     else equal, two customers in different

522=     territories should not see a different rate

523=     change.  Assuming all else equal.  Same exact

524=     risk profile, one maybe in Wilmington, one maybe

525=     in Dover.  But as long as they are the same exact

526=     risk otherwise, there should not be a difference

527=     in rate.

528=                  However, I did mention that we are

529=     updating the factors for other characteristics.

530=     And so, you do have that swing, since there are

531=     many factors that are being updated, to the

532=     extent that you're a customer that is getting the

533=     increase due to multiple factors, you're going to

534=     be on the higher end of the histogram on the rate

535=     change distribution.

536=                  So on average, it seems that the

537=     single vehicle, the ones who do not own a home,

538=     and only have liability coverage, so your bodily
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539=     injury, property damage, personal injury

540=     protection, and uninsured motorist coverage,

541=     they're the ones who are on the higher end of

542=     that distribution.

543=                  And then on the flip side, the rates

544=     compared to average have gone down for the

545=     customers who have multiple cars, who own a home,

546=     and have more than just the liability coverage,

547=     which includes collision coverage and

548=     comprehensive coverage.

549=                  So, multiple factors ultimately

550=     result in the final rate.  We are touching

551=     multiple factors.  And it just depends on your

552=     characteristics, and if you happen to, for each

553=     characteristic, be on the end where the rates are

554=     increasing, when you put that all together,

555=     you're going to see the larger than average

556=     increase.

557=                  But again, on the flip side, if

558=     you're a customer that is on the better side of

559=     each characteristic that we're updating, then

560=     you'll see --

561=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  A

562=     decrease?
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563=                  MR. CLARK:  And the way we view

564=     that, Gene, from a business perspective, is by

565=     getting to the most accurate rate even at an

566=     individual customer group around the

567=     characteristics that Wasim described.  That way,

568=     the customers whose performance is better than

569=     their current rate, that they have an opportunity

570=     to save money, or potentially pay less than the

571=     average rate that they have.

572=                  If we -- if our pursuit is to try to

573=     minimize the overall experience within the book,

574=     we would try to center more of the, you know,

575=     overall rate change around the -- you know, the

576=     eight and a half percent within this change that

577=     we're making here.

578=                  We think that's, you know, not in

579=     the best interests of a good percentage of our

580=     overall customer group.  And that would be a

581=     group that we would hope to have the opportunity

582=     to retain, as well as, you know, grow within this

583=     book of business.  We certainly want to grow in

584=     the other segments, but not at the current rate

585=     level that we charge.  We need a more adequate

586=     premium to be able to do it.  And that's what
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587=     creates what we refer to as spread within the

588=     overall rate level.

589=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.

590=     Thank you.  One last question.  Credit score, as

591=     you know, is used for new policyholders, not

592=     existing policyholders, under Delaware law.  If

593=     someone were to come to Allstate and had a very

594=     clean record, but had a very poor credit score

595=     rating, would they go to the substandard company,

596=     or could they also be written in the -- the

597=     better, or however --

598=                  MR. CLARK:  Yeah.  We do not have

599=     any underwriting guideline in regards to your

600=     credit score here in Delaware.  So a customer for

601=     all other perspective qualifies for the

602=     Allstate -- today it's the Allstate Property and

603=     Casualty Company, which is our standard auto

604=     company, they would not be in any way restricted

605=     or required to pay more, or be placed in a higher

606=     risk auto company.

607=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.

608=                  MR. CLARK:  We don't have any

609=     guidelines, and we believe that's in accordance

610=     with what we'd be asked to do here in the state.
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611=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Very

612=     good.  Thank you.  INS.

613=                  MR. MACESIC:  Okay.  INS

614=     Consultants, Inc., has been retained by the

615=     Delaware Department of Insurance to conduct an

616=     independent actuarial review of Allstate

617=     Indemnity Company's private passenger automobile

618=     rate filing that was submitted on November 14th,

619=     2011.

620=                  The scope includes a review of the

621=     filings submitted by Allstate Indemnity, an

622=     evaluation of the key assumptions contained in

623=     the company's rate level analysis, and the

624=     independent development of an indicated rate

625=     level change.

626=                  The rate filing was submitted by

627=     Rick Wisniewski, associate state filings director

628=     of Allstate Indemnity.  This review was conducted

629=     by David J. Macesic, ACAS, MAAA, and key elements

630=     of this review were peer reviewed by Robert W.

631=     Gardner, FCAS, MAAA.

632=                  INS has reviewed this submission in

633=     its entirety, along with other filing material

634=     requested of and received from Allstate
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635=     Indemnity.  The rate filing requested an overall

636=     rate level change of plus 15.0 percent.

637=                  INS finds that the proposed rate

638=     level change of plus 15.0 percent is not

639=     substantiated by the materials received from the

640=     company.  INS finds that a proposed rate level

641=     change in an amount no larger than plus 8.8

642=     percent is substantiated by the filing material

643=     received.

644=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Is that

645=     your report?

646=                  MR. MACESIC:  That's it.

647=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That was

648=     pretty quick, Mr. Macesic.  Good report.  Are

649=     there any questions from Allstate on that report?

650=                  MR. CLARK:  No, sir.

651=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  There's

652=     no one here from the public, so I will ask a few

653=     questions.  Can you please tell me what an ACAS

654=     and an MAAA and an FCAS are?

655=                  MR. MACESIC:  Associate of the

656=     Casualty Actuarial Society, versus a Fellow of

657=     the Casualty Actuarial Society.  And MAAA is a

658=     Member of the American Academy of Actuaries,
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659=     which means we are accredited actuaries.

660=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.

661=     All right.  I don't have any questions on your

662=     report.  You did a great job working with our

663=     rate analyst and rate assistant director.  I

664=     appreciate you doing that, and working with the

665=     Commissioner on this file, and also working with

666=     the Allstate actuary so that we could come to a

667=     change in the overall indicated rate level amount

668=     of, you said, 8.8 percent?

669=                  MR. MACESIC:  No.  It's not larger

670=     than plus 8.8 percent.

671=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.

672=     Not larger than 8.8 percent.  I appreciate your

673=     working with the Department and our staff.

674=                  MR. MACESIC:  Thank you.

675=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  I'm going

676=     to leave the record open until -- since there's

677=     nobody here since 6:00, I'm only going to leave

678=     the record open for another ten minutes.  We'll

679=     come back, take a ten minute recess, come back.

680=     If there's no one from the public here, we will

681=     go ahead and close out the hearing.  I appreciate

682=     everyone here that was here in attendance.
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683=                  Let me just ask Rhonda a quick

684=     question.  As far as procedural, I know you have

685=     it in the notes, but if you could tell me, are we

686=     leaving this open until Friday, the record?

687=                  MS. WEST:  Yeah.  What we'll do,

688=     because in case there was something now, we'll

689=     leave it open until Friday the 23rd, and then we

690=     close it out officially at that point.

691=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  That's

692=     Rhonda West, regulatory specialist for the

693=     Department.  That's what we'll do.  Take a

694=     ten-minute recess, and then we'll come back.  If

695=     no one from the public is here at 20 of 7, we

696=     will conclude the hearing tonight.

697=                  (Briefly off the record)

698=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Okay.

699=     We're back on the record.  It is now 20 minutes

700=     to 7.  There are no members from the public

701=     present, and as our regulatory specialist Rhonda

702=     West stated, we will keep it open for any written

703=     comments until this Friday at 4:30 p.m.

704=                  MS. WEST:  We've not received any

705=     yet.

706=                  DEPUTY COMMISSIONER REED:  Yeah.  I
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707=     think that's important for the record.  We

708=     haven't received any comments to date.  We

709=     appreciate the members of Allstate being here

710=     today, and we appreciate INS for giving their

711=     overview of the filing submission.

712=                  So, we will let the record reflect,

713=     again, no public attendance, and we are closing

714=     this public session as of now.  Thank you all for

715=     coming.

716=                  (Hearing concluded at 6:40 p.m.)
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731=                  REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

732=

733=         I, JULIANNE LaBADIA, Registered Diplomate

734=     Reporter and Notary Public, do hereby certify

735=     that the foregoing record, pages 1 through 30

736=     inclusive, is a true and accurate transcript of

737=     my stenographic notes taken on March 20, 2012, in

738=     the above-captioned matter.

739=          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

740=     hand and seal this 22nd day of March, 2012, at

741=     Wilmington.
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